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JOHN CHIANG
California State Controller

March 10, 2010

To the Citizens, Governor, and Members
of the Legislature of the State of California:

| am pleased to submit the State of California Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
year ended June 30, 2009. This report meets the requirements of Government Code section 12460 for an
annual report prepared strictly in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) and contains information to help readers gain a reasonable understanding of
the State’s financial activities.

Last year, California, like the nation, experienced its worst fiscal crisis since the Great Depression. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the State’s expenses exceeded revenues by $17.9 billion for
governmental activities. Governmental activities include most services and expenses normally associated
with state government, such as health and human services, education, business and transportation,
correctional programs, and general government. The State’s three major sources of revenue—personal
income taxes, corporation taxes, and sales and use taxes—dropped 13.5%, from $101.4 billion in the
2007-08 fiscal year to $87.7 billion in the 2008-09 fiscal year. The State’s General Fund ended the
2008-09 fiscal year with an $11.9 billion cash deficit that was covered by internal borrowing from special
funds. Recent indicators show that the recession, if not officially over, will likely end soon. Specifically, in
January 2010, the State’s total revenue from its three largest taxes was more than estimated and more
than that received in January 2009. Additionally, while California’s unemployment rate remained at 12.4%
for December 2009, the rise in the jobless rate has halted over the past three months. Although
California’s economy is showing modest signs of recovery, the State has only begun its recovery process.
The State still faces budgetary and cash shortfalls in the current fiscal year and must prudently manage
its fiscal resources.

During the past year, my office was required to take unprecedented steps to preserve enough cash to
meet the State’s constitutionally-required obligations. Traditionally, the State manages its General Fund
cash shortages with a combination of external and internal borrowing. During February 2009, additional
necessary steps included a 30-day delay in payments of $4.2 billion for personal income tax refunds,
money owed to private businesses for products and services provided to the State, and other payments.
Additionally, in July 2009, the State issued registered warrants (IOUs) for non-priority payments to
individuals and businesses. Fortunately, after revised budget actions, holders were able to redeem these
IOUs in September 2009, a month earlier than expected.

Our cash crisis last year represents a shameful chapter in California’s history. The best prevention
against future payment delays and 10Us is for the Governor and Legislature to quickly provide credible
and sustainable budget solutions. The Governor's spending plan for the next fiscal year proposes a
variety of budget solutions to close the $19.9 billion gap between projected revenues and expenditures. If
budget solutions are not implemented quickly, projected federal relief is not received, or additional
spending cuts and revenue increases are not made, California will once again be unable to meet all of its
payment obligations in a timely manner.
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Introduction to the Report

Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of data presented in the CAFR, including all
disclosures, rests with the State. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and are reported in a manner that fairly presents the financial position and the operations of
the primary government and its component units.

State statutes require an annual audit of the basic financial statements of the State. To meet this requirement,
the State Auditor has examined the accompanying financial statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. The auditor’s report on the basic financial statements and the
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the CAFR.

The State of California is also required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of
the United States Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. In conducting the engagement, the State Auditor used auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Information related to this single audit—including a schedule of
federal assistance, the independent auditor’s report on requirements applicable to each major program and on
internal controls over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, and a schedule of findings and
questioned costs—is included in a separately issued report.

The CAFR contains three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section is designed
to provide the background and context that readers need to benefit fully from the information presented in the
Financial Section. The Financial Section contains the independent auditor’s report, management’s discussion
and analysis, the basic financial statements, the required supplementary information, the combining and
individual fund statements, and the budgetary comparison schedule for nonmajor governmental cost funds.
The Statistical Section provides a history of selected financial and demographic information.

The State’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and contains an introduction, overview, and analysis of the financial statements. Our MD&A provides a
narrative introduction to the detailed financial statements and notes contained in the CAFR.

Profile of the Government

Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity of the State includes all of the funds of the primary government and of its
component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
primary government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the building
authorities are reported in the capital projects funds of the primary government. The lease agreements
between the building authorities and the primary government, amounting to $480 million, have been eliminated
from the balance sheet. Instead, only the underlying capital assets and the debt used to acquire them are
reported in the government-wide statements. The Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation is reported
as a special revenue fund of the primary government.
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Discretely presented component units are reported separately in the government-wide financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their financial
position and results of operations from those of the primary government. Additional information on the
reporting entity is included in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Budgetary Controls

The State Legislature prepares an annual budget that contains estimates of revenues and expenditures for the
ensuing fiscal year. This budget is the result of negotiations between the Governor and the Legislature.
Throughout the fiscal year, adjustments, in the form of budget revisions, executive orders, and financial
legislation agreed to by the Governor and the Legislature are made to the budget. The State Controller is
statutorily responsible for control over revenues due the primary government and for expenditures of each
appropriation contained in the budget. Budgeted appropriations are the expenditure authorizations that allow
state agencies to purchase or create liabilities for goods and services.

The State’s accounting system provides the State Controller's Office with a centrally-controlled record system
to fully account for each budgeted appropriation, including its unexpended balance, and for all cash receipts
and disbursements. The accounting system is decentralized, meaning the detail of each control account is
maintained by each state agency. During the fiscal year, the control accounts and the agency accounts are
maintained and reconciled on a cash basis. At the end of the fiscal year, each agency prepares annual accrual
reports for receivables and payables. The State Controller's Office combines its control account balances with
the agency accrual reports to prepare California’s Budgetary/Legal Basis Annual Report and the Budgetary/
Legal Basis Annual Report Supplement. State laws and regulations that, in some cases, do not fully agree with
GAAP govern the methods of accounting for expenditures and revenues in these reports.

The information in the CAFR represents a consolidation of the amounts in the Budgetary/Legal Basis Annual
Report and adjustments to the account balances to conform to GAAP. Additional information on the budgetary
basis of accounting can be found in Note 2, Budgetary and Legal Compliance, and in the Required
Supplementary Information section that follows the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Internal Controls

An internal control structure has been designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from
loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with legal requirements and GAAP. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. In
addition, the government maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Legislature and
Governor.
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Financial Condition

Economic Outlook

The economic outlook for the nation and California began to improve in the early part of the 2009-10 fiscal
year. The real estate markets, which accelerated the economic downturn and intensified underlying
imbalances in the economy, were beginning to show signs of life. Median home prices, which had dropped by
54.3% from their peak during early 2007, are beginning to level off. More new construction activity is expected
as a result of the increase in home sales. These trends should have positive implications for the housing
market.

As of December 2009, the unemployment rates in the U.S. and California were 10.0% and 12.4%,
respectively. However, fewer jobs were lost in the last half of 2009 than were lost during the first half of the
year. This is a positive indication that California’s labor markets and economy are starting to recover.
Economists forecast that the recession is at or nearing an end, but the recovery will be slow due to the
widespread damage that the economy has sustained.

Budget Outlook

2009-10 Fiscal Year

California’s initial 2009-10 Budget Act was enacted on February 20, 2009, more than four months before the
fiscal year began. The budget included $36 billion in solutions to what was then estimated to be a $42 billion
General Fund budget shortfall. It also included an estimated $6 billion provided from five budget-related
measures that were later rejected by voters. After adoption of the initial 2009-10 Budget Act, the State
continued to experience declines in revenues and other financial pressures. On May 14, 2009, the Governor
released the 2009-10 May Revision, which identified a further budget shortfall of approximately $24 billion
through the 2009-10 fiscal year.

In response, an amended 2009-10 Budget Act was enacted on July 28, 2009. It authorized spending of
$119.2 billion—$84.6 billion from the General Fund, $25.1 billion from special funds, and $9.5 billion from bond
funds. The General Fund’s available resources were projected to be $86.2 billion, leaving a reserve for
economic uncertainties of $500 million. The amended 2009-10 Budget Act and additional legislation included
spending reductions in virtually every state program and changes to certain tax laws to increase tax
compliance and accelerate revenue collection.

The 2010-11 Governor’'s Budget includes revised revenue and expenditure estimates for the 2009-10 fiscal
year. Based on those estimates, if no corrective budget actions are taken by the Governor and the Legislature,
the new estimated budget shortfall by the end of the 2009-10 fiscal year will be $6.6 billion.

2010-11 Fiscal Year

The Governor released his proposed 2010-11 budget on January 8, 2010. This proposed budget projects a
$19.9 billion gap between estimated revenues and state expenditures over the next 18 months. The Governor’s
Budget proposes $8.5 billion in spending reductions, $6.9 billion in additional federal funds, and $4.5 billion in
alternative funding and fund shifts. To resolve the projected budget shortfall, the Governor declared a fiscal
emergency and called the Legislature into special session on January 8, 2010. The proposed budget
anticipates action on $8.9 billion in solutions during the special session, as waiting until the enactment of the

vi



California State Controller's Transmittal Letter

2010-11 budget would result in the loss of $2.4 billion of expected budget solutions. Such a loss would require
even deeper cuts in the 2010-11 fiscal year.

The 2010-11 Governor's Budget projects (with all budget solutions enacted), General Fund revenues and
transfers of $89.3 billion and expenditures of $82.9 billion, resulting in a $1 billion reserve. The proposed
2010-11 General Fund revenues and transfers are 1.4% greater than the revised 2009-10 estimate of
$88.1 billion, while proposed 2010-11 General Fund expenditures are 3.7% less than the revised 2009-10
estimate of $86.1 billion. The Governor's 2010-11 proposed budget relies heavily on federal funding and seeks
flexibility to more effectively manage program costs currently restricted by federal maintenance-of-effort
requirements, court decisions and underfunded federal mandates. The proposed budget also relies heavily on
reductions to State spending, and funding shifts—some that would require voter approval.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of California for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.
This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

This CAFR could not have been prepared without the assistance and cooperation of all state agencies and
universities. We wish to thank the State Auditor and her staff for their audit of the financial statements

contained in this report. | also am grateful to the members of my staff for their dedicated efforts and
professionalism.

Sincerely,

Original signed by:

JOHN CHIANG

California State Controller
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e CALIFORNIA STATE AUDITOR

Doug Cordiner '
Chief Deputy Bureau of State Audits
555 Capitol Mall, Suite 300 Sacramento, CA 95814 916.445.0255 916.327.0019 fax www.bsa.ca.gov

Independent Auditor’s Report

THE GOVERNOR AND THE LEGISLATURE OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of California, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the State of California’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the State of
California’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the following significant amounts in the financial statements of:

Government-wide Financial Statements

e Certain enterprise funds that, in the aggregate, represent 94 percent, 69 percent, and 41 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the business-type activities.

e The University of California, State Compensation Insurance Fund, California Housing Finance
Agency, Public Employees’ Benefits, and certain other funds that, in the aggregate, represent
over 99 percent of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the discretely presented component
units.

Fund Financial Statements

e The following major enterprise funds: Electric Power fund, Water Resources fund, Public
Building Construction fund, and State Lottery fund.

e Certain nonmajor enterprise funds that represent 95 percent, 92 percent, and 89 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the nonmajor enterprise funds.

e The funds of the Public Employees’ Retirement System and the State Teachers’ Retirement
System that, in the aggregate, represent 88 percent, 92 percent, and 73 percent, respectively, of
the assets, net assets, and additions of the fiduciary funds and similar component units.

e The discretely presented component units noted above.

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us,
and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those funds and entities, is based
on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards



require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of California, as
of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will issue separate reports on
our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of the
State’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of those reports is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide opinions on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Those reports are an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress, infrastructure information,
budgetary comparison information, reconciliation of budgetary and GAAP-basis fund balances, and
related notes are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America. We
and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State of California’s basic financial statements. The combining financial
statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors,
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections of this report have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

BUREAU OF STATE AUDITS

OHN F. COLLINS II, CPA
Deputy State Auditor

February 12, 2010



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following Management’'s Discussion and Analysis is a required supplement to the State of California’s
financial statements. It describes and analyzes the financial position of the State, providing an overview of the
State’s activities for the year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information we
present here in conjunction with the information presented in the Controller’s letter of transmittal at the front of
this report and in the State’s financial statements and notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights - Primary Government
Government-wide Highlights

During 2009, California, like the nation, confronted what could have been the most severe economic downturn
since the Great Depression. As a result, the State’s general revenues decreased 13.3% from last year,
primarily in revenue received from personal income tax and sales and use taxes. However, expenses for the
State’s governmental activities grew by 2.4%, resulting in a $17.9 billion decrease in governmental activities’
net assets. Total expenses for the State’s business-type activities also exceeded revenues for the year,
primarily because unemployment benefits paid exceeded employers’ contributions. Reduced general revenues
and increased expenses and long-term obligations resulted in a 70.0% decrease in the total net assets for
governmental and business-type activities from the 2007-08 fiscal year.

Net Assets — The primary government’s net assets as of June 30, 2009, were $9.8 billion. After the total net
assets are reduced by $83.2 billion for investment in capital assets (net of related debt) and by $12.2 billion for
restricted net assets, the resulting unrestricted net assets totaled a negative $85.6 billion. Restricted net assets
are dedicated for specified uses and are not available to fund current activities. Almost two-thirds of the
negative $85.6 billion consists of $51.8 billion in outstanding bonded debt issued to build capital assets for
school districts and other local governmental entities. The bonded debt reduces the unrestricted net assets;
however, local governments, not the State, record the capital assets that would offset this reduction.

Changes in Net Assets — The primary government’s total net assets decreased by $22.9 billion (70.0%) during
the year ended June 30, 2009. Net assets of governmental activities decreased by $17.9 billion (76.9%), while
net assets of business-type activities decreased by $5.0 billion (53.1%).

Fund Highlights

Governmental Funds — As of June 30, 2009, the primary government’s governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $8.5 billion, a decrease of $4.2 billion from the prior fiscal year. After the total
fund balance is reduced by $29.7 billion in reserves, the unreserved fund balance totaled a negative
$21.2 billion.

Proprietary Funds — As of June 30, 2009, the primary government’s proprietary funds reported combined
ending net assets of $4.8 billion, a decrease of $5.1 billion from the prior fiscal year. After the total net assets
are reduced by $35 million for investment in capital assets (net of related debt) and expendable restrictions of
$3.9 billion, the unrestricted net assets totaled $925 million.
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Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

As of June 30, 2009, the primary government’s noncurrent assets totaled $130.0 billion, of which $103.5 billion
is related to capital assets. State highway infrastructure assets of $59.2 billion represent the largest portion of
the State’s capital assets.

The primary government’s noncurrent liabilities totaled $125.6 billion, which consists of $67.4 billion in general
obligation bonds, $29.6 billion in revenue bonds, and $28.6 billion in all other noncurrent liabilities. During the
2008-09 fiscal year, the primary government’s noncurrent liabilities increased by $18.5 billion (17.2%) over the
prior fiscal year. This large increase was the result of $15.4 billion in new general obligation bonds issued
primarily for construction of education facilities and transportation projects, a $2.4 billion increase in net other
postemployment benefits obligations, and a $1.9 billion unemployment programs loan payable to the U.S.
Department of Labor.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the section presenting the State’s basic financial statements,
which includes four components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements,
(8) discretely presented component units financial statements, and (4) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains required supplementary information and combining financial statements and schedules.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the State’s
finances. The government-wide financial statements do not include fiduciary programs and activities of the
primary government and component units because fiduciary resources are not available to support state
programs.

To help readers assess the State’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year, the statements provide
both short-term and long-term information about the State’s financial position. These statements are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to methods
used by most businesses. These statements take into account all revenues and expenses connected with the
fiscal year, regardless of when the State received or paid the cash. The government-wide financial statements
include two statements: the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

* The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the State’s assets and liabilities and reports the difference
between the two as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets indicate whether the
financial position of the State is improving or deteriorating.

* The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the State’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. The State reports changes in net assets as soon as the event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, this statement reports revenues
and expenses for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each function of the State.

The government-wide financial statements separate into different columns the three types of state programs
and activities: governmental activities, business-type activities, and component units.
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e Governmental activities are mostly supported by taxes, such as personal income and sales and use taxes,
and intergovernmental revenues, primarily federal grants. Most services and expenses normally
associated with state government fall into this activity category, including health and human services,
education (public kindergarten through 12th grade [K-12] schools and institutions of higher education),
business and transportation, correctional programs, general government, resources, state and consumer
services, and interest on long-term debt.

® Business-type activities typically recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges to external users of goods and services. The business-type activities of the State of California
include providing unemployment insurance programs, providing housing loans to California veterans,
providing water to local water districts, providing building aid to school districts, providing services to
California State University students, leasing public assets, selling California State Lottery tickets, and
selling electric power. These activities are carried out with minimal financial assistance from the
governmental activities or general revenues of the State.

e Component units are organizations that are legally separate from the State, but are at the same time
related to the State financially (i.e., the State is financially accountable for them) or the nature of their
relationship with the State is so significant that their exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The State’s financial statements include the information for blended,
fiduciary, and discretely presented component units.

-  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance a part of the primary
government’s operations. Therefore, for reporting purposes, the State integrates data from blended
component units into the appropriate funds. The Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation
and certain building authorities that are blended component units of the State are included in the
governmental activities.

«  Fiduciary component units are legally separate from the primary government but, due to their fiduciary
nature, are included with the primary government’s fiduciary funds. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System and the State Teachers’ Retirement System are fiduciary component units that are included
with the State’s pension and other employee benefit trust funds, which are not included in the
government-wide financial statements.

«  Discretely presented component units are legally separate from the primary government and provide
services to entities and individuals outside the primary government. The activities of discretely
presented component units are presented in a single column in the government-wide financial
statements.

Information on how to obtain financial statements of the individual component units is available from the State
Controller’s Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting, P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, CA 94250-5872.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds and similar
component units, and discretely presented component units. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
State of California, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual requirements. Following are general descriptions of the
three types of funds.
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e  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions that are reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on short-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s short-term financing
requirements. This approach is known as the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. These governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the State’s finances, enabling readers to determine whether adequate financial
resources exist to meet the State’s current needs.

Because governmental fund financial statements provide a narrower focus than do government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare governmental fund statements to the governmental activities
information presented in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s short-term financing decisions. Reconciliations
located on the pages immediately following the fund statements show the differences between the
government-wide statements and the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. Primary differences between the
government-wide and fund statements relate to noncurrent assets, such as land and buildings, and
noncurrent liabilities, such as bonded debt and amounts owed for compensated absences and capital
lease obligations, which are reported in the government-wide statements but not in the fund-based
statements.

®  Proprietary funds show activities that operate more like those found in the private sector. The State of
California has two proprietary fund types: enterprise funds and internal service funds.

»  Enterprise funds record activities for which a fee is charged to external users; they are presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

« Internal service funds accumulate and allocate costs internally among the State of California’s various
functions. For example, internal service funds provide information technology, printing, fleet
management, and architectural services primarily for state departments. As a result, their activity is
considered governmental.

e  Fiduciary funds account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the State. Fiduciary funds and
the activities of fiduciary component units are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of these funds are not available to support State of California programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds and similar component units is similar to that used for proprietary
funds.

Discretely Presented Component Units Financial Statements

As discussed previously, the State has financial accountability for discretely presented component units, which
have certain independent qualities and operate in a similar manner as private-sector businesses. The activities
of the discretely presented component units are classified as enterprise activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements in this publication provide additional information that is essential for a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements, which describe particular accounts in more detail, are located immediately following the
discretely presented component units’ financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

A section of required supplementary information follows the notes to the basic financial statements in this
publication. This section includes a schedule of funding progress for certain pension and other
postemployment benefit trust funds, information on infrastructure assets based on the modified approach, a
budgetary comparison schedule, and a reconciliation of the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis fund
balances for the major governmental funds presented in the governmental fund financial statements.

Combining Financial Statements and Schedules

The Combining Financial Statements and Schedules — Nonmajor and Other Funds section presents combining
statements that provide separate financial statements for nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor proprietary
funds, fiduciary funds, and nonmajor component units. The basic financial statements present only summary
information for these activities.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net Assets

The primary government’s combined net assets (governmental and business-type activities) decreased 70.0%,
from $32.7 billion as restated at June 30, 2008, to $9.8 billion a year later.

The primary government’s $83.2 billion investment in capital assets, such as land, building, equipment, and
infrastructure (roads, bridges, and other immovable assets) comprise a significant portion of its net assets. This
amount of capital assets is net of any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The State uses capital
assets when providing services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the State’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay
this debt must come from other sources because the State cannot use the capital assets themselves to pay off
the liabilities.

Another $12.2 billion of the primary government’s net assets represents resources that are externally restricted
as to how they may be used, such as resources pledged to debt service. Internally imposed earmarking of
resources is not presented in this publication as restricted net assets. The State may use a positive balance of
unrestricted net assets of governmental activities to meet its ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. As of
June 30, 2009, governmental activities showed an unrestricted net assets deficit of $86.3 billion and business-
type activities showed unrestricted net assets of $718 million.

A large portion of the negative unrestricted net assets of governmental activities comprises $51.8 billion in
outstanding bonded debt issued to build capital assets for school districts and other local governmental
entities. Because the State does not own these capital assets, neither the assets nor the related bonded debt
is included in the portion of net assets reported as “investment in capital assets, net of related debt.” Instead,
the bonded debt is reported as a non-current liability that reduces the State’s unrestricted net assets. Readers
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can expect to see a continued deficit in unrestricted net assets of governmental activities as long as the State
has significant outstanding obligations for school districts and other local governmental entities.

Table 1 presents condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Net Assets for the primary
government.

Table 1

Net Assets — Primary Government
June 30, 2008 and 2009
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2009 2008* 2009 2008* 2009 2008*
ASSETS
Current and other assets ......... $ 48,369 $ 48,376 3% 28,752 3% 32,207 $ 77121 $ 80,583
Capital assets 96,593 95,360 6,859 6,841 103,452 102,201
Total assets 144,962 143,736 35,611 39,048 180,573 182,784
LIABILITIES
Noncurrent liabilities ............... 98,287 81,475 27,286 25,642 125,573 107,117
Other liabilities ...................... 41,300 37,204 3,883 3,494 45,183 40,698
Total liabilities ................ 139,587 118,679 31,169 29,136 170,756 147,815
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets
net of related debt ............... 83,285 84,255 (131) 50 83,154 84,305
Restricted .......ccoovvviiiiiiin, 8,392 10,149 3,855 6,853 12,247 17,002
Unrestricted ........c..ooovvvenveiene. (86,302) (69,347) 718 3,009 (85,584) (66,338)
Total net assets .............. $ 5375 $ 25,057 $ 4442 $ 9912 § 9,817 $ 34,969

* Not restated

Changes in Net Assets

The expenses of the primary government totaled $221.7 billion for the year ended June 30, 2009. Of this
amount, $103.3 billion (46.6%) was funded with program revenues (charges for services or program-specific
grants and contributions), leaving $118.4 billion to be funded with general revenues (mainly taxes). The
primary government’s general revenues of $95.5 billion were less than the unfunded expenses. As a result, the
total net assets decreased by $22.9 billion, or 70.0%.

Of the total decrease, net assets for governmental activities decreased by $17.9 billion, while those for
business-type activities decreased by $5.0 billion. The decrease in governmental activities net assets is
primarily due to a dramatic decline in general revenue—primarily revenue from personal income and sales and
use taxes. The sudden economic downturn that California and the nation experienced during the last two years
had a dramatic impact on personal income and taxable sales—the revenue base for these taxes. The
decrease in business-type activities net assets is mainly due to unemployment benefit payments exceeding
employers’ contributions, federal loans, and other revenue for unemployment programs.

10
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Table 2 presents condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Activities for the primary
government.

Table 2

Changes in Net Assets — Primary Government
Year ended June 30, 2008 and 2009
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for Services ...........cccceeevereunennnn. $ 19,989 $ 20,296 $ 24288 $ 19,828 $ 44277 $ 40,124
Operating grants and contributions ........... 57,829 45,850 — — 57,829 45,850
Capital grants and contributions ............... 1,143 1,207 72 189 1,215 1,396
General revenues:
95,023 109,205 — — 95,023 109,205
176 639 — — 176 639
316 282 — — 316 282
Total revenues 174,476 177,479 24,360 20,017 198,836 197,496
EXPENSES
Program expenses:
General government 13,896 13,187 — — 13,896 13,187
Education ........cccooviiiiiiii 65,644 65,130 — — 65,644 65,130
Health and human services ..................... 79,077 74,310 — — 79,077 74,310
RESOUrCES ...covvviiiiiiiiii e 5,626 6,333 — — 5,626 6,333
State and consumer services ................... 1,519 1,129 — — 1,519 1,129
Business and transportation .................... 11,980 13,068 — — 11,980 13,068
Correctional programs .................... 10,835 10,504 — — 10,835 10,504
Interest on long-term debt 3,801 4,185 — — 3,801 4,185
Electric POWer ........c.ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiieeee, — — 4,560 5,362 4,560 5,362
Water Resources — — 915 1,009 915 1,009
Public Building Construction .................... — — 420 372 420 372
State Lottery .......oouviiviieiiiiii — — 3,069 3,173 3,069 3,173
Unemployment Programs ... — — 19,609 10,623 19,609 10,623
Nonmajor enterprise ...........ccceeeevieeeneen. — — 793 984 793 984
Total eXPENSES .....ceeecueeerrrveeerireeernnnes 192,378 187,846 29,366 21,523 221,744 209,369
Excess (deficiency) before transfers ... (17,902) (10,367) (5,006) (1,506) (22,908) (11,873)
Transfers .....cooviiiiiiii 21 55 (21) (55) — —
Change innetassets .........cccccoevviininnnnnn, (17,881) (10,312) (5,027) (1,561) (22,908) (11,873)
Net assets, beginning of year (restated) ... 23,256 35,369 9,469 11,473 32,725 46,842
Net assets, end of year ......ccccccevveeniiennnns $ 5375 $ 25,057 $ 4,442 $ 9,912 $ 9,817 $ 34,969
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities expenses totaled $192.4 billion. Program revenues, including $59.0 billion received in
federal grants, funded $79.0 billion (41.1%) of expenses, leaving $113.4 billion to be funded with general
revenues (mainly taxes). However, general revenues and transfers for governmental activities totaled only
$95.5 billion, so governmental activities’ total net assets decreased by $17.9 billion, or 78.7%, during the year
ended June 30, 2009.

Chart 1 presents a comparison of governmental activities expenses by program, with related revenues.

Chart 1

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in billions)

General Government

Education

Heath and Human Services

Business and Transportation

Correctional Programs

Other

- Program Revenues - Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2009, total state tax revenues collected for governmental activities decreased by
13.0% from the prior year. Revenue from all tax sources decreased, but the largest drop was in personal
income taxes ($9.6 billion, or 17.4%) and sales and use taxes ($3.6 billion, or 10.4%). Personal income tax
revenue declined primarily because taxpayers had less income from real estate-related profits and financial
market capital gains, and because more Californians were unemployed during the 2008-09 fiscal year. The
decrease in sales and use tax revenue was the result of the continued weakness in consumer spending.

Overall expenses for governmental activities increased by $4.5 billion (2.4%) over the prior year. The largest
growth in expenses was a $4.8 billion increase in health and human services spending that was mainly
attributable to increased services provided by the Medical Assistance (Medi-Cal) program and other public
health programs. Most health and human services programs are funded through federal grants, which include
economic stimulus funds received from the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009.
The spending increase to this program type was somewhat offset by decreased spending in other program
areas, including resources and business and transportation.
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Charts 2 and 3 present the percentage of total expenses for each governmental activities program and the

percentage of total revenues by source.

Chart 2

Chart 3

Expenses by Program
Year ended June 30, 2009
(as a percent)

Revenues by Source
Year ended June 30, 2009
(as a percent)
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities expenses and transfers totaled $29.4 billion. Program revenues of $24.3 billion,
primarily generated from charges for services, were not sufficient to cover these expenses. Consequently,
business-type activities’ total net assets decreased by $5.0 billion, or 53.1%, during the year ended
June 30, 2009. Most of the decrease was due to a $5.3 billion decrease in the unemployment programs’ net
assets, discussed in more detail in the Fund Financial Analysis section under Proprietary Funds.

Chart 4 presents a two-year comparison of the expenses of the State’s business-type activities.

Chart 4

Expenses — Business-type Activities — Two-Year Comparison

Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2009
(amounts in billions)

State Lottery
Electric Power
Unemployment Programs

Other
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Fund Financial Analysis

The national recession and the State’s weakening economy had the greatest impact on governmental funds,
which rely heavily on taxes to support the majority of their services and programs. All categories of
governmental fund tax revenue decreased during the year for total decreased revenue of $14.1 billion from the
prior year. Although, for the first time in several years, the expenditures of governmental funds decreased from
the prior year, tax revenues declined more. Most of the proprietary funds incurred net asset reductions as their
expenses exceeded revenues for the year ended June 30, 2009. The Unemployment Programs Fund incurred
the largest decline in its net assets due to increased benefit payments caused by California’s high
unemployment rate.

Governmental Funds

The governmental funds’ Balance Sheet reported $63.6 billion in assets, $55.1 billion in liabilities, and
$8.5 billion in fund balance as of June 30, 2009. Total assets of governmental funds increased by 22.3% and
total liabilities increased by 40.0%, while total fund balance decreased by 32.8% from the prior fiscal year.
These large changes are interrelated and were caused by the severe cash shortage that the General Fund
experienced during the 2008-09 fiscal year. The General Fund had depleted its cash reserves by
June 30, 2008, and relied on internal borrowing to meet its payment obligations. During the 2008-09 fiscal
year, enacted legislation increased the General Fund’s borrowing capacity, and by June 30, 2009, it had
borrowed a total of $11.9 billion from many of the State’s other funds. As a result, the governmental funds’ total
short- and long-term interfund receivables increased by $9.8 billion, primarily in funds other than the General
Fund. In contrast, the cash and pooled investments of governmental funds decreased by $1.9 billion, while
total short- and long-term interfund payables increased by $14.9 billion, primarily in the General Fund.

In addition to amounts borrowed from other governmental funds, the General Fund borrowed from internal
service funds, enterprise funds, and fiduciary funds. The outstanding loans that the General Fund owes to
these other fund types comprise much of the $4.2 billion decease in fund balance of the governmental funds.
Within the total fund balance, $29.7 billion has been set aside in reserves. The reserved amounts are not
available for new spending because they have been committed for outstanding contracts and purchase orders
($8.2 billion), noncurrent interfund receivables and loans receivable ($12.7 billion), continuing appropriations
($8.4 billion), and debt service ($339 million). The unreserved balance of the governmental funds is a negative
$21.2 billion.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the governmental funds shows
$174.4 billion in revenues, $196.0 billion in expenditures, and a net $17.4 billion in receipts from other
financing sources. The ending fund balance of the governmental funds for the year ended June 30, 2009, was
$8.5 billion, a $4.2 billion decrease over the prior year’s restated ending fund balance of $12.7 billion. The
decrease in the fund balance was primarily caused by decreases in all categories of state tax revenue during
the 2008-09 fiscal year. Personal income taxes, which account for 47.9% of tax revenues and 26.2% of total
governmental fund revenues, decreased by $9.7 billion from the prior fiscal year. Sales and use taxes, which
account for 33.1% of tax revenues and 17.9% of total governmental fund revenues, decreased by $3.3 billion
from the prior fiscal year. The credit crisis and the major decline in stock prices during 2008 eroded the State’s
tax revenue base. Given the decline in California’s real estate markets and the rapid decline in national stock
prices, income from capital gains fell significantly. Lower asset prices of housing and stocks, along with
increased unemployment prompted consumers to scale back purchases of big-ticket items. In turn, fewer sales
and less profit reduced the revenue generated from sales and use taxes and corporation taxes.
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The State’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the Federal Fund, and the Transportation Fund.
The General Fund ended the fiscal year with a fund deficit of $16.1 billion. The Federal Fund and the
Transportation Fund ended the fiscal year with fund balances of $84 million and $6.7 billion, respectively. The
nonmajor governmental funds ended the year with a total fund balance of $17.9 billion.

General Fund: As shown on the Balance Sheet, the General Fund (the State’s main operating fund) ended the
fiscal year with assets of $14.7 billion, liabilities of $30.7 billion, and fund balance reserves of $2.3 billion,
leaving the General Fund with an unreserved fund deficit of $18.3 billion. Total assets of the General Fund
changed little during the year, because the $1.2 billion decrease in cash and pooled investments was offset by
a $1.2 billion increase in due from other funds, primarily from the Federal Fund. During the 2008-09 fiscal year,
the General Fund experienced severe cash shortages, resulting in a 30-day delay of payments to individuals
and businesses, the deferral of certain payments to the next fiscal year, and legislative changes to increase the
General Fund’s internal borrowing capacity. The liabilities of the General Fund increased by $12.4 billion
(67.3%), mainly in amounts due to other funds ($3.2 billion) and interfund payables ($8.8 billion) resulting from
the General Fund’s increased cash-flow borrowing from other state funds to meet its payment obligations.

As shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the governmental
funds, the General Fund had $84.2 billion in revenues, $92.6 billion in expenditures, and a net $3.5 billion
disbursement from other financing sources (uses) for the year ended June 30, 2009. Approximately 94% of
General Fund revenue ($79.2 billion) is derived from the State’s big three taxes—personal income taxes
($44.7 billion), sales and use taxes ($23.8 billion), and corporation taxes ($10.7 billion).

During the 2008-09 fiscal year, total General Fund tax revenue decreased by $12.9 billion, or 13.7%; the
decrease in revenue from the State’s big three taxes account for almost the entire decline. Revenue from
personal income taxes decreased by $9.5 billion (17.6%), primarily due to a decline in capital gains and other
variable income, such as bonuses and stock options, and also by the increase in California’s unemployment.
Revenue from sales and use taxes decreased by $2.8 billion (10.6%), primarily due to a decline in consumer
spending on big-ticket items such as vehicles, building supplies, and home furnishings. Revenue from
corporation taxes decreased by $463 million; the decrease would have been much higher if not for revenue-
enhancing measures adopted as part of the 2008-09 Budget Act.

General Fund expenditures decreased by $6.4 billion, to $92.6 billion. The programs with the largest
decreases were education, which decreased by $5.1 billion, to $46.0 billion, and health and human services,
which decreased by $1.2 billion, to $28.0 billion. The General Fund’s ending fund balance (including reserves)
for the year ended June 30, 2009, was a negative $16.1 billion, a decrease of $11.9 billion over the prior year's
ending fund balance of negative $4.2 billion. Continued deterioration of the State’s revenues has caused a
decline in the Proposition 98 funding requirement (known as the minimum education funding guarantee), which
allowed the State to reduce General Fund spending on K-14 education in the 2008-09 fiscal year. Additional
reductions were also made in the funding provided to California’s higher education facilities. The decreased
expenditures for health and human services were mainly the result of economic relief provide by ARRA that
reduced the General Fund’s share of Medical Assistance program costs and increased the required federal
share.

Federal Fund. This fund reports federal grant revenues and the related expenditures to support the grant
programs. The largest of these program areas is health and human services, which accounted for $41.3 billion
(71.9%) of the total $57.4 billion in fund expenditures. The Medical Assistance program and the Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families program are included in this program area. Education programs also constituted
a large part of the fund’s expenditures—$10.5 billion (18.3%)—most of which were apportionments made to
local educational agencies (school districts, county offices of education, community colleges). The Federal
Fund’s revenues increased by approximately the same amount as did the combined expenditures and
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transfers ($11.9 billion), with revenues increasing slightly more than expenditures and transfers, resulting in a
$41 million increase in fund balance from the prior year. The increase in Federal Fund revenues and
expenditures was primarily the result of economic stimulus funding from ARRA that was mainly used for health
and human services, correctional programs, and education expenditures.

Transportation Fund: This fund accounts for fuel taxes, bond proceeds, and other revenues used primarily for
highway and passenger rail construction. The Transportation Fund’'s revenues increased by 1.7% and
expenditures decreased by 5.1%. However, the main reason for the $1.2 billion increase in fund balance over
the prior year's restated fund balance was a $1.5 billion increase in other financing sources from general
obligation bonds issued during the year.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds: In general, the slowing economy did not have as significant an effect on enterprise funds as
it did on governmental funds. Most major enterprise funds’ activity remained stable, as revenues approximated
expenses. However, further increases in California’s unemployment rate had a dramatic effect on the already
stressed Unemployment Programs Fund, whose net assets decreased during the year by $5.3 billion to a
negative $1.5 billion.

As shown on the Statement of Net Assets of the proprietary funds, total assets of the enterprise funds were
$36.0 billion as of June 30, 2009. Of this amount, current assets totaled $6.2 billion and noncurrent assets
totaled $29.8 billion. The largest changes in asset account balances were a $2.5 billion decrease in cash and
pooled investments and a $2.5 billion decrease in the amount on deposit with U.S Treasury in the
Unemployment Programs Fund. The total liabilities of the enterprise funds were $31.6 billion. The largest
liability of the enterprise funds is for bonds payable—$21.9 billion of revenue bonds payable and $1.6 billion of
general obligation bonds payable. Although there was activity during the year—new bonds issued,
redemptions, and defeasances—the change in the ending balance of these accounts was small. During the
2008-09 fiscal year, the State obtained loans from the U.S Department of Labor to cover deficits in the
Unemployment Programs Fund in the first and second quarter of 2009. The balance due on these loans as of
June 30, 2009 was $1.9 billion.

Total net assets of the enterprise funds were $4.4 billion as of June 30, 2009. Total net assets consisted of
three segments: expendable restricted net assets of $3.9 billion, investment in capital assets (net of related
debt) of negative $131 million, and unrestricted net assets of $718 million. The Unemployment Programs Fund
had a net deficit of $1.5 billion, a $5.3 billion (139.1%) decrease from the prior year. The net assets of all other
enterprise funds experienced little change during the year.

The large decreases in cash and pooled investments, the amount on deposit with the U.S Treasury, and the
net assets of the Unemployment Programs Fund were the result of the increased demand for unemployment
benefits. Several years ago, a legislative change nearly doubled the maximum unemployment weekly benefit
amount, but there was no corresponding increase to the tax rate schedule or the taxable wage base that would
have generated additional revenue to cover the increased benefit. As unemployment began to dramatically
increase during the 2007-08 fiscal year, the fund’s unemployment insurance receipts for the year fell short of
the amount needed to pay the current-year unemployment benefits. During the 2008-09 fiscal year, the
condition of the Unemployment Programs Fund deteriorated further, as California’s unemployment rate rose to
11.6% by June 2009. In addition to the federal loans received in the 2008-09 fiscal year, the State anticipates
requesting other loans to cover projected deficits in 2010. In its October 2009 forecast, the Employment
Development Department projects that the fund will end 2010 with a deficit of $18.4 billion. To restore
solvency, the State must increase employer taxes, reduce benefits, or do some combination of the two.
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Without corrective action, the Unemployment Programs Fund will remain insolvent for the foreseeable future
and the interest payments on the federal loans, which are currently being waived until after December 2010
under ARRA, will likely become the General Fund’s responsibility beginning in the 2011-12 fiscal year.

As shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets of the proprietary
funds, the enterprise funds ended the year with operating revenues of $23.1 billion, operating expenses of
$27.1 billion, and net disbursements from other transactions of $1.0 billion. The largest sources of operating
revenue were unemployment and disability insurance receipts of $14.2 billion in the Unemployment Programs
Fund and power sales of $3.6 billion collected by the Electric Power Fund. The largest operating expenses
were distributions to beneficiaries of $19.4 billion by the Unemployment Programs Fund and power purchases
(net of recoverable costs) of $3.6 billion by the Electric Power Fund. The ending net assets of the enterprise
funds at June 30, 2009, were $4.4 billion—$5.0 billion less than the prior year's restated ending net assets of
$9.4 billion.

Internal Service Funds: Total net assets of the internal service funds were $373 million as of June 30, 2009.
These net assets consist of two segments: investment in capital assets (net of related debt) of $166 million and
unrestricted net assets of $207 million.

Fiduciary Funds

The State of California has four types of fiduciary funds: private purpose trust funds, pension and other
employee benefit trust funds, investment trust funds, and agency funds. The private purpose trust funds ended
the fiscal year with net assets of $3.0 billion. The pension and other employee benefit trust funds ended the
fiscal year with net assets of $306.1 billion. The State’s only investment trust fund, the Local Agency
Investment Fund, ended the fiscal year with net assets of $25.2 billion. Agency funds act as clearing accounts
and thus do not have net assets.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the fiduciary funds’ combined net assets were $334.3 billion, a
$102.8 billion decrease from prior year net assets. The decrease in net assets for these funds was mainly
attributable to a decline in investment income that actually resulted in a net loss for the year and a decrease in
the fair value of the funds’ investments of $113.2 billion (23.9%).

The Economy for the Year Ending June 30, 2009

As the 2008-09 fiscal year began, the economy was well into the recession, which began in December of 2007.
There was not a single quarter of positive growth in the gross domestic product during the 2008-09 fiscal year,
with the annualized reduction ranging from -0.7% to -6.4% on a quarterly basis. The federal government
continued to play an active role in the housing markets with programs like the First Time Homebuyer Tax
Credit. In addition, the Federal Reserve continued to hold its target interest rate at between 0% and 0.25%
through the end of the 2008-09 fiscal year.

Labor markets were hit hard during the 2008-09 fiscal year as well. Nationwide, the unemployment rate rose to
9.5% by June 2009—its highest rate since August 1983. In June 2009, total nonfarm employment was
132 million jobs, down from its peak of 138 million in December 2007. This represents a total decline of
6 million, or 4.7% of all nonfarm jobs in the country, and it brings the nation back to the level of employment in
2004.

California’s labor markets also experienced difficulty during the 2008-09 fiscal year. By June 2009, the State’s
unemployment rate had climbed to 11.6%—its highest rate in more than 30 years. In terms of employment,
California felt the effects of the current recession more than did the U.S. overall during the 2008-09 fiscal year.
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By the end of June 2009, the State had lost more than 903,000 jobs since December 2007. This number
represents a 6% decline in employment and demonstrates the severity of the recession in California relative to
the nation overall, which lost only 4.7% of its jobs. Unlike in the 2007-08 fiscal year, when job losses were
largely in real estate-related industries, the 2008-09 fiscal year saw much broader job losses across most
industries.

Additionally, personal income and taxable sales, which represent the State’s two largest individual sources of
revenue for the General Fund, fell dramatically in the 2008-09 fiscal year. By the end of June 2009, personal
income was down 3.3% from its peak in September 2008 and taxable sales had fallen 23.6% from its quarterly
peak in December 2006. These declines put a strain on California’s financial position and on its already
depleted cash reserves.

General Fund Budget Highlights

The original General Fund budget of $102.1 billion was decreased by $5.8 billion. This decrease is mainly
composed of reductions to various education programs due to fiscal emergency measures. During the 2008-09
fiscal year, General Fund actual budgetary basis expenditures were $93.1 billion, $3.2 billion less than the final
budgeted amounts.

Table 3

General Fund Original and Final Budgets
Year ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in millions)

Increase/
Original Final (Decrease)
Budgeted amounts
State and CONSUMET SEIVICES .......iiiuieiiieeiiit ettt e $ 577  $ 570 $ (7)
Business and transportation ..o 1,030 1,030 —
RESOUICES ...t 1,095 1,614 519
Health and human SErVICES ............iiiiuiiiiiiiiii e 31,505 30,870 (635)
Correctional ProOgramS .........iiiuuue ittt e e 10,225 9,731 (494)
EAUCALION ... e e 48,067 43,048 (5,019)
General government:

TaX TEIET ..t e 769 680 (89)
DEDE SEIVICE . eneie e e 4,316 4,391 75
Other general gOVErNMENt ...........uuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,500 4,317 (183)
I ] - $ 102,084 $ 96,251 § (5,833)
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2009,
amounted to $103.5 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
state highway infrastructure, collections, buildings and other depreciable property, and construction in
progress. Depreciable property includes buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, personal
property, intangible assets, certain infrastructure assets, certain books, and other capitalized and depreciable
property. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and can be preserved for a greater
number of years than can most capital assets. Infrastructure assets include roads and bridges.

Table 4 presents a summary of the primary government’s capital assets for governmental and business-type
activities.

Table 4

Capital Assets
Year ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

LaNG - e $ 16,355 $ 49 $ 16,404
State highway infrastructure ..............cooiiiiiiiiiiii e, 59,188 — 59,188
Collections — NoNdepreciable ...........c..ooiiuiiiiiiiii e 23 — 23
Buildings and other depreciable property ............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie 23,031 8,092 31,123
Less: accumulated depreciation ...............ooieiiiiiiiiiiiii e (9,410) (3,264) (12,674)
CONSrUCION IN PrOGIrESS ...vvniiin et 7,406 1,982 9,388

I | $ 96,593 $ 6,859 $ 103,452

The budget authorized $4.7 billion for the State’s capital outlay program in the 2008-09 fiscal year, not including
funding for state highway infrastructure and K-12 schools. State highway infrastructure assets are discussed in
more detail in the Required Supplementary Information that follows the notes to the financial statements. Of the
$4.7 billion authorized, $213 million was from the General Fund; $2.0 billion was from lease-revenue bonds;
$2.0 billion was from proceeds of various general obligation bonds; and $480 million was from reimbursements,
federal funds, and special funds. The major new capital projects authorized include:

e $1.7 billion for numerous construction projects within the University of California, the California State
University, and the California Community Colleges;

e $199 million in lease-revenue bonds for the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation for the
completion of construction of an inmate complex at San Quentin State Prison, construction of a
wastewater treatment plant, construction of dormitory housing, construction of a kitchen facility, and
renovation to other facilities;
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e $158 million in lease-revenue bonds for the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection for various new
and continuing projects, including: replacement of two unit headquarters, three forest fire stations, and a
helitack base, and the relocation of an auto shop;

e $127 million for the Department of Water Resources for levee evaluations and repairs in the Central Valley.
This funding will be used to identify and correct the most serious levee deficiencies to protect life and
property from flooding in the Central Valley;

e $119 million for 11 continuing projects to replace structurally deficient court facilities; and

e  $58 million for the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation for new and continuing projects mainly to
address infrastructure deficiencies and security concerns.

Note 7, Capital Assets, includes additional information on the State’s capital assets.

Modified Approach for Infrastructure Assets

The State uses the modified approach to report the cost of its infrastructure assets (state roadways and
bridges). Under the modified approach, the State does not report depreciation expense for roads and bridges
but capitalizes all costs that add to the capacity and efficiency of State-owned roads and bridges. All
maintenance and preservation costs are expensed and not capitalized. Under the modified approach, the State
maintains an asset management system to demonstrate that it is preserving the infrastructure at or above
established condition levels. The State is responsible for maintaining 49,477 lane miles and 12,266 bridges.

During the 2008-09 fiscal year, the actual amount spent on preservation was 26.6% of the estimated budgeted
amount needed to maintain the infrastructure assets at the established-condition levels. Although the amount
spent fell short of the budgeted amount, the assessed conditions of the State’s bridges and roadways are
better than the established condition baselines.

The Required Supplementary Information includes additional information on how the State uses the modified
approach for infrastructure assets; it also presents the established condition standards, condition assessments,
and preservation costs.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2009, the primary government had total bonded debt outstanding of $101.2 billion. Of this amount,
$70.4 billion (69.6%) represents general obligation bonds, which are backed by the full faith and credit of the
State. Included in the $70.4 billion of general obligation bonds is $8.6 billion of Economic Recovery bonds that
are secured by a pledge of revenues derived from dedicated sales and use taxes. The current portion of
general obligation bonds outstanding is $3.0 billion and the long-term portion is $67.4 billion. The remaining
$30.8 billion (30.4%) of bonded debt outstanding represents revenue bonds, which are secured solely by
specified revenue sources. The current portion of revenue bonds outstanding is $1.2 billion and the long-term
portion is $29.6 billion. Table 5 presents a summary of the primary government’s long-term obligations for
governmental and business-type activities.
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Table 5

Long-term Obligations
Year ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Government-wide noncurrent liabilities

General obligation bonds ............ccccoiiiiiiiiiii $ 65,808 $ 1,584 $ 67,392
ReveNUE bONAS ......couiiiii s 7,614 21,953 29,567
Certificates of participation and commercial paper ...........cccccccevieunnnens 1,401 51 1,452
Capital lease obligations ............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 4,175 — 4,175
Net other postemployment benefits obligation............c.cccocoeiiiiininnn. 4,620 101 4,721
Proposition 98 funding guarantee ...............ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 3,419 — 3,419
Mandated COSES .......ciuiiiiii i 3,034 — 3,034
Loans Payable .........oiiiniiiiii e 199 1,994 2,193
Other noncurrent liabilities ...........ccooiiiiiiii e 8,017 1,603 9,620

Total noncurrent liabilities ..o e 98,287 27,286 125,573
Current portion of long-term obligations ...............ccoooooiiiiiiin 3,883 1,736 5,619

Total long-term obligations ...........ccoerrruiiirremeesnr e e $ 102,170 $ 29,022 $ 131,192

The primary government’s total long-term obligations increased during the year ended June 30, 2009.
Governmental activities general obligation bonds payable had the largest increase ($12.2 billion) as
$15.4 billion in new bonds were issued during the fiscal year. The largest share of the proceeds will go toward
public education facilities and transportation projects. The net other postemployment benefits obligation
increased because the State does not fully fund the annual cost of these benefits. As a result of implementing
GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, pollution
remediation obligations of $605 million were added to the long-term obligations for governmental activities.

Note 10, Long-term Obligations, and Notes 11 through 16 include additional information on the State’s
long-term obligations.

In February 2009, Standard & Poor’s reduced the State’s general obligation bond credit rating from “A+” to “A”
due to the State’s inability to reach an agreement on the mid-year budget revision and its rapidly eroding cash
position. In March 2009, Moody’s Investors Service reduced its rating from “A1” to “A2” and Fitch reduced its
rating from “A+” to “A”. Both cited the ongoing weakening of the State’s economy, including its reduced
revenues, cash flow/liquidity stress, and continued budget problems. In June 2009, Fitch further reduced its
rating to “A-” citing the magnitude of the State’s financial and institutional challenges and persistent economic
and revenue weakening.
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Recent Economic Condition and Future Budgets

Recent Economic Condition

The economic outlook for the nation and California began to improve in the early part of the 2009-10 fiscal
year. The real estate markets, whose decline accelerated the economic downturn and intensified underlying
imbalances in the economy, began to show signs of life. Median home prices, which had dropped by 54.3%
from their peak during early 2007, began to level off. Indeed, home prices in California have increased during
the last quarter of 2009. In addition, California has seen a 17% increase in home sales for 2009 and
foreclosure activity has declined somewhat. However, the foreclosure rate remains high by historical
standards. New construction activity is expected as a result of the increase in home sales. In fact, newly issued
residential building permits have averaged more than 3,000 units per month for the first half of the 2009-10
fiscal year. These trends should have positive implications for a housing market that has been in trouble since
2006, and for construction employment, which followed the housing market’s decline.

As of December 2009, the unemployment rates in the U.S. and California were 10.0% and 12.4%, respectively.
However, fewer jobs were lost in the last half of 2009 than were lost during the first half of the year. In
December 2009, the number of unemployed Americans fell by 73,000 to 15 million. This was the nation’s
second unemployment decrease in a row. In December 2009, the number of unemployed Californians fell by
19,000 to 2 million. This was the State’s third unemployment decrease in the previous four months. This slight
decrease in unemployment is a positive indication that California’s labor markets and economy are moving
toward a recovery.

Although there are indications that the economy is improving, there is some uncertainty whether the recent
improvement in the housing and labor markets is the start of a trend. The federal government played an active
role in attempting to stimulate the markets over the past year and a half, with programs such as the First-Time
Homebuyer Tax Credit, the Cash for Clunkers program, Making Work Pay tax credits, and a low federal funds
rate. It is uncertain whether federal policy makers will continue these types of initiatives. Some economists
forecast that the recession is at or nearing bottom, but the recovery will be slow due to the widespread damage
that the State’s economy has sustained.

California’s 2009-10 Budget

California’s 2009-10 Budget Act was enacted on February 20, 2009, more than four months before the fiscal
year began. The spending plan enacted $36 billion in solutions for an estimated $42 billion General Fund
budget gap for the combined 2008-09 and 2009-10 fiscal years. On May 14, 2009, the Governor released the
2009-10 May Revision, which identified, through the 2009-10 fiscal year, a further budget shortfall of
approximately $24 billion, including an estimated $6 billion that would have been provided by five budget-
related measures that were rejected by the voters on May 19, 2009.

An amended 2009-10 Budget Act was enacted on July 28, 2009; it included another $24 billion in solutions to
address the additional shortfall identified in the 2009-10 May Revision. The amended Budget Act was
$119.2 billion—$84.6 billion from the General Fund, $25.1 billion from special funds, and $9.5 billion from bond
funds. The General Fund’s available resources were projected to be $86.2 billion, and the adopted budget
included a reserve for economic uncertainties of $500 million. The amended budget includes spending
reductions in virtually every state program, but primarily in K-12 and higher education, employee
compensation, and health and human services. In addition, the budget amendments included $1.9 billion in
property tax monies borrowed from local governments pursuant to Proposition 1A (2004). The borrowed sums
will be used to fund K-12 schools, courts, prisons, and certain bond expenses that would otherwise be funded
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by the General Fund. The enabling legislation requires the monies to be repaid with interest by June 30, 2013,
and authorizes a local-government-created joint powers authority to issue bonds against the State’s repayment
obligation.

General Fund revenues come predominately from taxes, with personal income taxes expected to provide 55%
of total revenue. California’s major taxes (personal income, sales and use, and corporation taxes) were
projected to supply approximately 95% of the General Fund’s resources in the 2009-10 fiscal year. The
amended 2009-10 Budget Act, and additional legislation, included several changes to these major revenue
sources, including temporary increases in sales tax and vehicle license fees, a personal income tax surcharge,
accelerated estimated tax payments, and a 10% increase in wage withholding rates.

The proposed 2010-11 Governor's Budget provides revised revenue and expenditure estimates for the
2009-10 fiscal year. If no corrective budget actions are taken by the Governor and the Legislature, the new
estimated budget shortfall by the end of the 2009-10 fiscal year is $6.6 billion. The continued deterioration of
revenues and failure to achieve all the budget solutions and savings expected from the previously enacted
budgets were cited as the major reasons for the revised budget shortfall estimate. The Governor’s proposed
solutions to address this shortfall are discussed further in the next section.

California’s 2010-11 Budget

The Governor released his proposed 2010-11 budget on January 8, 2010. This proposed budget projects a
$19.9 billion gap between estimated revenues and state expenditures over the next 18 months. The
$19.9 billion figure is comprised of a $6.6 billion shortfall in the 2009-10 fiscal year, a $12.3 billion shortfall in
the 2010-11 fiscal year, and a modest $1 billion reserve. The Governor's Budget proposes $8.5 billion in
spending reductions, $6.9 billion in additional federal funds, and $4.5 billion in alternative funding and fund
shifts—some that would require voter approval. The Governor declared a fiscal emergency and called the
Legislature into special session on January 8, 2010. The proposed budget anticipates action on $8.9 billion in
solutions during the special session, as waiting until the enactment of the 2010-11 budget would result in the
loss of $2.4 billion of expected budget solutions, causing even deeper cuts in the 2010-11 fiscal year.

The 2010-11 Governor’s Budget projects (with all budget solutions enacted) that 2009-10 fiscal year General
Fund revenues and transfers will be about $88.1 billion and expenditures will be about $86.1 billion. The
proposed budget anticipates, for the 2010-11 fiscal year, General Fund revenues and transfers of about
$89.3 billion and expenditures of about $82.9 billion, resulting in a $1 billion reserve. Proposed 2010-11
General Fund revenues and transfers are 1.4% greater than the revised 2009-10 estimates of $88.1 billion,
while 2010-11 General Fund expenditures are 3.7% less than the revised 2009-10 estimates of $86.1 billion.
Proposed expenditure solutions for the 2010-11 fiscal year include reducing employee compensation and the
State’s retirement contributions by $1.6 billion, reducing Proposition 98 spending by $1.5 billion, and
implementing various Medi-Cal changes for a savings of $1.1 billion.

The Governor's 2010-11 proposed budget relies heavily on federal funding and seeks flexibility to more
effectively manage program costs currently restricted by federal maintenance-of-effort requirements, court
decisions, and underfunded federal mandates. These federal solutions include $2.1 billion from extending a
portion of federal economic stimulus funding for various health and human services programs and increasing
federal reimbursements for Medi-Cal by $1.8 billion, for Medicare and prescription drug costs by $1.0 billion,
and for special education by $1.0 billion. Proposed solutions, in the event that federal funding and program
flexibility falls short of the $6.9 billion anticipated in the budget, include $1.2 billion from extending for one year
the suspension of net operating losses that businesses use to reduce taxable income, $1.0 billion from
eliminating the California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids program, and $847 million from shifting
Proposition 63 mental health funds to pay General Fund expenditures for mental health services.
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According to the Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO), California’s nonpartisan fiscal and policy advisor, though
the State may obtain additional federal funding and may be granted some flexibility in managing federal
programs, it is unlikely that the State will secure all of the federal assistance the Governor anticipates.
Therefore, the Legislature must make some of the difficult decisions suggested by the Governor in anticipation
that federal relief will be less than expected. The LAO maintains that the Legislature must show steady
progress toward a new, sustainable budget framework that will restore the State’s fiscal well-being and
improve public trust in state government.

Requests for Information

The State Controller’'s Office designed this financial report to provide interested parties with a general overview
of the State of California’s finances. Address questions concerning the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information to the State Controller's Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting,
P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, California 94250. This report is also available on the Controller's Office Web
site at www.sco.ca.gov.
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Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments .............ccceceeeennnnn.
Amount on deposit with U.S. Treasury .................
Investments
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments .............cc.cceeeeeee.
Investments ...........ccooeeiiinnnns
Due from other governments
Net investment in direct financing leases ..............
Receivables (net)
Internal balances

Due from primary government ................cccccoeee
Due from other governments ..................ccc..oee
Due from component units ...........cccoceeiviinncncieenene.
Prepaid items ........cooiiiiiii
INVENTOTIES ..vveiieeciiee e
Recoverable power costs (net) ........c..ccceuviinnen.
Other current assets ............ccoevvviiiiiiiiiniiciinnnnn.

Total current assets .........c.occoveeiiiiiiiniiiiincnn,
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and pooled investments ................cccceeeee.

Investments ............

Loans receivable
INVEStMENtS ......ooeii
Net investment in direct financing leases ...
Receivables (Net) .......ccooviiiiiiiii e
Loans receivable ...........c.coooiiiii
Recoverable power costs (net) ...
Deferred charges .........c.coveeviiiiiiiiiiiiiecee,
Capital assets:

State highway infrastructure
Collections — nondepreciable ......................cc.
Buildings and other depreciable property ...........
Less: accumulated depreciation .......................
Construction in Progress ..........cccoveveuveevineeennn.
Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets .............cccoeevveeinnnnnn.
Total assets ....cccceveriieriiii s

28

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

16,545,964 $ 1,928,798 $ 18,474,762 $ 4,722,655
— 118,013 118,013 —
1,589,789 441,831 2,031,620 6,699,310
— 1,640,248 1,640,248 72,832

— — —_ 72,438

— 58,788 58,788 —

— 378,512 378,512 —
11,779,200 463,130 12,242,330 3,788,017
(1,312,632) 1,312,632 — —
— — —_ 72,176
13,962,747 258,240 14,220,987 444,613
516,295 — 516,295 —
121,044 8,209 129,253 3,694
85,119 22,540 107,659 166,456

— 468,000 468,000 —

97,271 72,518 169,789 309,586
43,384,797 7,171,459 50,556,256 16,351,777
— 1,268,922 1,268,922 99,086

—_ 411,676 411,676 7,513

— 395,029 395,029 —

— 1,679,763 1,679,763 36,801,587

— 6,761,300 6,761,300 —
1,812,000 47,071 1,859,071 961,185
3,102,463 4,012,738 7,115,201 8,346,720
— 5,691,000 5,691,000 —

68,773 1,286,690 1,355,463 40,083
16,354,789 49,686 16,404,475 869,894
59,188,379 — 59,188,379 —
23,579 29 23,608 312,453
23,030,916 8,091,954 31,122,870 33,337,820
(9,410,107) (3,264,054) (12,674,161) (14,437,496)
7,405,749 1,981,655 9,387,404 2,933,575
— 26,070 26,070 445,221
101,576,541 28,439,529 130,016,070 69,717,641
144,961,338 $ 35,610,988 $ 180,572,326 $ 86,069,418

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable ............ceveieiieiiieeeiieeiee i $ 19,733,920 $ 559,373 $ 20,293,293 $ 2,403,631
Due to primary government — — — 516,295
Due to component units ....... 72,176 — 72,176 —
Due to other governments ............... 8,471,045 174,011 8,645,056 2,110
Dividends payable ... — — — 1,000
Deferred revenue ..........c.eveieiiiiiiiicie e — 62,385 62,385 1,020,265
Tax overpayments ........cocvveeiereiiiieiiieiaeieeeeenns 5,294,770 — 5,294,770 —
DEPOSIES - vvve e 272,422 4,987 277,409 525,087
Contracts and notes payable ..............cccc.ceeeennnn. 2,728 — 2,728 21,847
Unclaimed property liability .........cccccoecieiiiiiiininns 737,724 — 737,724 —
Advance collections ..........cccceviiiiiiiiiiiiei e 1,028,044 21,934 1,049,978 94,724
Interest payable ... 1,028,731 207,338 1,236,069 165,965
Securities lending obligations ............c...cccoiveinns — — — 2,388,326
Benefits payable ...........cccoviiviiiiii — 1,038,148 1,038,148 1,759,203
Current portion of long-term obligations ............... 3,882,979 1,735,708 5,618,687 1,627,221
Other current liabilities ...........cccccoeiiviiiiin. 775,603 78,734 854,337 2,142,247
Total current liabilities ...............coceeeiiiienne. 41,300,142 3,882,618 45,182,760 12,667,921
Noncurrent liabilities:
Benefits payable ..........cccooiiiiiiiiii — 5,490 5,490 16,380,731
Loans payable ...........ccooeiiiiiiiii e 199,437 1,944,070 2,143,507 29,873
Lottery prizes and annuities .............ccccoeeeieennnee. — 1,089,742 1,089,742 —
Compensated absences payable ................c....... 2,647,959 41,411 2,689,370 230,586
Certificates of participation, commercial paper,
and other borrowings ...........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiein, 1,400,797 51,307 1,452,104 87,428
Capital lease obligations ..............cccoiiiiiiieennn.n 4,175,407 — 4,175,407 2,605,362
General obligation bonds payable ....................... 65,808,257 1,584,187 67,392,444 —
Revenue bonds payable ....................... 7,613,704 21,952,960 29,566,664 16,146,590
Net other postemployment benefits 4,619,748 100,502 4,720,250 2,660,299
Pollution remediation obligation ..... . 570,116 — 570,116 41,198
Other noncurrent liabilities ..............ccooeeeiinn. 11,251,207 516,544 11,767,751 1,853,801
Total noncurrent liabilities ..............ccooeieennns 98,286,632 27,286,213 125,572,845 40,035,868
Total liabilities .......ccceeviirmuiiineineiiireeeenn, 139,586,774 31,168,831 170,755,605 52,703,789
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt .... 83,285,184 (130,634) 83,154,550 11,813,381
Restricted:
Nonexpendable — endowments .............c.......... — — — 3,512,089
Expendable:
Endowments and gifts ..........cccoveiiiniinnieennn — — — 5,746,107
Business and transportation . 2,728,378 43,045 2,771,423 1,746,662
Resources .......cccceeeeeeevneenen.. 2,223,758 1,412,129 3,635,887 —
Health and human services .. 25,220 120,912 146,132 —
Education .........ccccveieieiiiii e 1,521,799 424,301 1,946,100 1,434,379
General government .........cccceveveieeiieeieenineens 1,892,659 665,698 2,558,357 1,055,993
Unemployment programs ..........ccccceeveeenieeenns — 1,188,966 1,188,966 —
Workers’ compensation liability ..............c......... — — — 4,969,906
Total expendable .........cccceeeviiiiiiieeeee s 8,391,814 3,855,051 12,246,865 14,953,047
UNrestricted .....oooeeivieiiiie e (86,302,434) 717,740 (85,584,694) 3,087,112
Total net assets .......cccceeviiinni i nnnannnn, 5,374,564 4,442,157 9,816,721 33,365,629
Total liabilities and net assets .........cc......... $ 144,961,338 $ 35,610,988 $ 180,572,326 $ 86,069,418

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government ............cceceeeieeeeneineiiinninn. $ 13,895,948 $ 4,781,126  $ 5,327,858 $ —
Education .......cc.ooiiiiiiiii 65,643,486 3,483,072 7,437,293 —
Health and human services ...........cccceeeenennnn. 79,077,015 4,256,069 42,803,312 —
RESOUICES ...t 5,626,359 2,578,738 211,426 —
State and consumer Services ............c.ccceeeeunnns 1,518,402 658,486 49,838 —
Business and transportation ...............ccc.ooeeenn. 11,980,315 4,210,461 1,865,327 1,142,691
Correctional programs ............cc.cceveveiieninnennnnn. 10,835,203 21,592 133,568 —
Interest on long-term debt ...l 3,801,283 — — —
Total governmental activities ........................ 192,378,011 19,989,544 57,828,622 1,142,691
Business-type activities:
Electric POWer .......cooiiiiiiiiii 4,560,000 4,560,000 — —
Water ReSOUICES ..........oovuiiiniiiiiiciiceiee, 914,837 914,837 — —
Public Building Construction ..............cccc.eceee. 420,465 366,151 — —
State Lottery ....ooovveviiiiiiiiii e 3,069,365 3,051,320 — —
Unemployment Programs ............ccccoeeveieennnnns 19,609,068 14,273,975 — —
High Technology Education 15,590 15,975 — —
State University Dormitory Building
Maintenance and Equipment ................. 486,349 811,454 — —
State Water Pollution Control Revolving 12,261 59,923 — 71,882
Housing Loan .........coooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 130,777 109,636 — —
Other enterprise programs ............c.ccceeeeeeenennnn. 147,441 124,952 — —
Total business-type activities ........................ 29,366,153 24,288,223 — 71,882
Total primary government ..........ccccceeveeeee $ 221,744,164 $ 44,277,767 $ 57,828,622 $ 1,214,573
Component units:
University of California ...................... $ 21,719,318  $ 10,865,007 $ 7,449,115 $ 154,998
State Compensation Insurance Fund 2,375,029 1,587,327 — —
California Housing Finance Agency ..................... 796,189 532,137 521,265 —
Public Employees’ Benefit Fund ............cccceeiieene 2,178,999 1,908,855 — —
Nonmajor component units ...............ccooeeeeenn. 2,138,143 1,289,129 538,189 15,954
Total component Units ..........cooeeevveeennnennnns, $ 29,207,678 $ 16,182,455 $ 8,508,569 $ 170,952
General revenues:
Personal iINCOME taXES .....cuuiiiiiiie e e e e
SalES AN USE TAXES ...evuiiiiei et
COrPOTrAtioN TAXES ...vv.eeeiiit ettt et et e
INSUFANCE TAXES . ..eeiit et et ees
OtNEI TAXES ..t
Investment and iNTErest ..o
ESCREAL ..o e aaae s
(O 43T SR PPTRRPR
TrANSTOIS et e e e e e
Total general revenues and transfers ............cccoeieiiimeciincins e,
Change iN NEE @SSELS .....cuuiiii i e
Net assets, July 1, 2008 ........cccoimiiiuimmriniir e e e e raans
Net assets, June 30, 2009 .......ccoivuiriimeimmnri s rrr s sra s snasaassasssnsnens
* Restated
30 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (3,786,964) $ (3,786,964)
(54,723,121) (54,723,121)
(32,017,634) (32,017,634)
(2,836,195) (2,836,195)
(810,078) (810,078)
(4,761,836) (4,761,836)
(10,680,043) (10,680,043)
(3,801,283) (3,801,283)
(113,417,154) (113,417,154)
$ — —
(54,314) (54,314)
(18,045) (18,045)
(5,335,093) (5,335,093)
385 385
325,105 325,105
119,544 119,544
(21,141) (21,141)
(22,489) (22,489)
(5,006,048) (5,006,048)
(113,417,154) (5,006,048) (118,423,202)
$ (3,250,198)
(787,702)
257,213
(270,144)
(294,871)
(4,345,702)
45,709,344 — 45,709,344 —
31,244,979 — 31,244,979 —
10,741,140 — 10,741,140 —
2,063,555 — 2,063,555 —
5,264,685 — 5,264,685 —
175,584 — 175,584 (831,084)
315,642 — 315,642 —
— — — 2,289,117
21,015 (21,015) — —
95,535,944 (21,015) 95,514,929 1,458,033
(17,881,210) (5,027,063) (22,908,273) (2,887,669)
23,255,774 * 9,469,220 * 32,724,994 36,253,298 *
$ 5,374,564 $ 4,442,157 $ 9,816,721 § 33,365,629

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 31
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Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Nonmajor
General Federal Transportation Governmental Total
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments .................. $ 643,463 $ 355,075 $ 3,280,576 $ 11,581,499 $ 15,860,613
Investments ............ — — — 1,589,789 1,589,789
Receivables (net) 9,948,292 1,181 562,953 1,142,472 11,654,898
Due from other funds ...........cccceveiiinnennn. 2,600,701 39 1,687,366 2,964,110 7,252,216
Due from component units ............ 516,295 — — — 516,295
Due from other governments 714,717 13,034,725 58,155 143,024 13,950,621
Interfund receivables 123,275 — 2,588,972 6,975,924 9,688,171
Loans receivable ........... 109,673 85,026 — 2,838,469 3,033,168
Other assets .......coevevviiiiiieiiieieeieeeeeee 17 — 72,689 24,565 97,271
Total assets .......coceueiimeiireiiiieieeans $ 14,656,433 $ 13,476,046 $ 8,250,711 $ 27,259,852 $ 63,643,042
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ...........cccceeeeeeeieiieenienn. $ 1,559,416 $ 1,274,504 $ 530,970 $ 3,978,974 $ 7,343,864
Due to other funds ...........cooeeeiiiiiiiiinen. 8,138,225 9,485,612 558,177 1,146,550 19,328,564
Due to component units ...........cccceveueeennnn. — — — 68,880 68,880
Due to other governments ..................c..... 3,244,914 2,556,587 195,423 2,556,961 8,553,885
Interfund payables ...........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiinnen. 11,038,274 — — 28,802 11,067,076
Tax overpayments ........ccocvvevivniirncnnnennns 5,285,635 — — 9,135 5,294,770
DEPOSItS .uevieeeieee 2,085 — 5,194 258,598 265,877
Advance collections ..........ccccoceviviiiiinnnns 366,305 51,626 18,884 267,452 704,267
Interest payable ...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiin 1,040 9,148 — 217,483 227,671
Unclaimed property liability............cccceeeeneee. 737,724 — — — 737,724
General obligation bonds payable................ — —_ —_ 407,995 407,995
Other liabilities ...........cooiiiiiiiiiinns 366,711 14,960 283,283 448,986 1,113,940
Total liabilities ..........ccoeereniimnnineans 30,740,329 13,392,437 1,591,931 9,389,816 55,114,513
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ..........ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiinn, 1,487,156 — 3,775,926 2,959,565 8,222,647
Interfund receivables ..............cco.occiiin 123,275 —_ 2,588,972 6,975,924 9,688,171
Loans receivable .............ccooiiiiiiiinin. 109,673 85,026 —_ 2,838,469 3,033,168
Continuing appropriations ...................... 540,400 — 5,105,520 2,796,794 8,442,714
Debt Service......ooouviiiiieiiiieeieeee e — — — 339,370 339,370
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund .........ooooiii (18,344,400) — — — (18,344,400)
Special revenue funds ...............c.oeeeeeee. — (1,417) (4,811,638) 1,273,801 (3,539,254)
Capital projects funds ............ccoivenienn. — — — 686,113 686,113
Total fund balances (deficit) .............. (16,083,896) 83,609 6,658,780 17,870,036 8,528,529
Total liabilities and fund
balances .......cccoevviiieiiiiiirr s $ 14,656,433 $ 13,476,046 $ 8,250,711 $ 27,259,852

34 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

(amounts in thousands)

Total fund balances — governmental funds $ 8,528,529

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different from those in the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet because:

¢ Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in 96,389,396
the funds.

¢ Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are not reported. 1,828,751

* Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as architectural, 372,990

procurement, and technology services, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

* Bond discounts, premiums, and deferred issue costs are amortized over the life of the bonds and are included (410,335)
in the governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

¢ General obligation bonds totaling $68,065,723, revenue bonds totaling $8,269,596, and certificates of (77,743,227)
participation and commercial paper totaling $1,407,908 are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period; therefore, adjustments to these liabilities are not
reported in the funds:

Compensated absences (2,672,892)
Capital leases (4,448,638)
Net other postemployment benefits obligation (4,513,385)
Mandated costs (3,034,430)
Workers’ compensation (2,251,165)
Pollution remediation obligations (605,003)
Other noncurrent liabilities (6,066,027)
(23,591,540)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 5,374,564

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 35
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009

. Nonmajor
(amounts in thousands)
General Federal Transportation Governmental Total
REVENUES
Personal income taxes $ 44685899 $ — $ — 3 796,827 $ 45,482,726
Sales and use taxes .........cccoeveviiiiiieiieennnns 23,781,261 — 1,518,672 6,125,375 31,425,308
Corporation taxes .........occeveuieiiiiiiiiineiieannns 10,738,140 — — — 10,738,140
Insurance taxes 2,063,555 — — — 2,063,555
Othertaxes ........oveiieiiiiiiieeiieeee e 485,966 — 2,963,151 1,796,299 5,245,416
Intergovernmental ....................... — 58,957,376 — 2,095,715 61,053,091
Licenses and permits 224,071 — 3,226,001 2,355,297 5,805,369
189,899 — 451,165 345,709 986,773
298,741 — 19,252 5,025,809 5,343,802
85,358 225 64,634 710,269 860,486
556,511 — 40,421 511,126 1,108,058
315,642 — — — 315,642
777,936 — 74,980 3,080,119 3,933,035
Total revenues .......ccoeeeveviiieninrnnnnnnen, 84,202,979 58,957,601 8,358,276 22,842,545 174,361,401
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government ...........cocceviiiieeennne. 3,402,099 1,498,711 23,869 8,151,222 13,075,901
Education .........coooiuiiiiii 45,981,446 10,525,566 624,036 6,726,018 63,857,066
Health and human services ..................... 27,967,454 41,273,243 141,065 9,349,374 78,731,136
RESOUICES . oviviiiiiie e 1,255,879 189,001 196,109 3,568,695 5,209,684
State and consumer services ................... 528,585 49,863 108,037 579,583 1,266,068
Business and transportation ..................... 104,366 2,893,061 10,260,788 545,303 13,803,518
Correctional programs ............c.ccceeeeunen. 8,934,157 860,377 — 89,059 9,883,593
Capital outlay ........coeeeeiiiiiiiiiiis 364,813 — — 1,067,563 1,432,376
Debt service:
Bond and commercial paper retirement ..... 1,668,514 55,275 364,285 3,043,526 5,131,600
Interest and fiscal charges ....................... 2,397,909 21,918 25,214 1,139,317 3,584,358
Total expenditures .........cccevuuivveenrnnnnns 92,605,222 57,367,015 11,743,403 34,259,660 195,975,300
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures .................. (8,402,243) 1,590,586 (3,385,127) (11,417,115) (21,613,899)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General obligation bonds and commercial
PAPETr ISSUEA .. .ceuiiiiiiieieeeiee e e — — 3,629,155 13,134,930 16,764,085
Revenue bonds issued ............ccoeeeveeevieeieenne, — — 97,635 — 97,635
Premium on bonds issued............ccccvvveeeennnns 124,734 — 1,373 — 126,107
Capital 18aSES ......covvueeiiiiiiiiiieee e 364,813 — — — 364,813
Transfers in .....oooooveiiii i, 289,930 — 1,333,411 5,153,135 6,776,476
Transfers out .......cocevviiiiiiiii e, (4,292,261) (1,549,729) (461,672) (385,996) (6,689,658)
Total other financing sources (uses) ... (3,512,784) (1,549,729) 4,599,902 17,902,069 17,439,458
Net change in fund balances ......................... (11,915,027) 40,857 1,214,775 6,484,954 (4,174,441)
Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 2008 ............ (4,168,869) 42,752 5,444,005 * 11,385,082 * 12,702,970
Fund balances (deficit), June 30, 2009 ......... $ (16,083,896) $ 83609 $ 6,658,780 $ 17,870,036 $ 8,528,529

* Restated

36 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

(amounts in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different from those in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceed depreciation in the current period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are deferred and not
reported as revenues in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as architectural,
procurement, and technology services, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service
funds is reported with governmental activities.

Bonds and other noncurrent financing instruments provide current financial resources to governmental funds in
the form of debt, which increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets. The following amounts represent the difference between proceeds and repayments:

General obligation bond (12,442,654)
Revenue bond 43,977
Certificates of participation and commercial paper 328.181

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences (711,119)
Capital leases (81,275)
Net other postemployment benefits obligation (2,270,554)
Mandated costs (506,065)
Workers’ compensation (36,478)
Pollution remediation obligations 20,971

Other noncurrent liabilities (554,013)

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

$

(4,174,441)

2,433,589

114,384

(45,713)

(12,070,496)

(4,138,533)

(17,881,210)
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Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Water
Electric Power Resources
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments .................. $ — 369,820
Amount on deposit with U.S. Treasury — —
IV ESTMENTS ...t et et et et e e e a e — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled INVESIMENTS ... ... e e 1,593,000 —
Due from other gOVErNMENTS .........ouuiiii i e — —
Net investment in direct financing leases — —
ReCeIVabIes (NEL) ...cou et — 75,447
Due from Other fUNAS .. ... e et e e 13,000 2,803
Due from other governments — 39,110
Prepaid IfEMS ... . — —
(a1 2T a1 (o) (=TSP PRPPRPTRt — 13,988
Recoverable power costs (net) 468,000 —
Other CUIMENT @SSES ...ttt e et e et e e et e e 72,000 —
Total CUMTENT @SSEIS ... e 2,146,000 501,168
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled INVESTMENES ..........iiit i et e e 1,193,000 59,869
INVESIMIEBNES .o i eaeas 300,000 75,477
LO@NS FECRIVADIE ... e e e e e — —
INVESEMENTS ...t e et — —
Net investment in direct fiN@nCiNg 1ASES .........iviuiiiiiiii e — —
RECEIVADIES ...t e e e — —
INtErfUNA rECEIVADIES ... ...eeiii e e e e e e e — 91,517
LOANS FECEIVADIE .....viieiiti it et et e aaaaas — 22,360
Recoverable POWET COSES (NMEL) .. .c.uuniit it et e e e aen 5,691,000 —
Deferred ChargESs ... ...t e et e e — 1,181,760
Capital assets:
= T o TP PPN — —
Collections — NONAEPIECIADIE. ..........coiiiiiiieiei ettt — —
Buildings and other depreciable Property ... — 4,646,914
Less: accumulated depreCiation ...............oocuue i e — (2,008,520)
CONSIIUCHION 1N PrOGIESS ...t eeit ettt ettt ettt e e e e eaea e — 461,208
Other NONCUITENT @SSEES .. ... e et — —
Total NONCUITENT @SSEES ..ot it e e et e e e eans 7,184,000 4,530,585
e €= L= T = PP $ 9,330,000 5,031,753

38 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal
Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ — 285,743 % 45294  $ 1,227,941 1,928,798 $ 685,351
— — 118,013 — 118,013 —
— 245,064 — 196,767 441,831 —
— — — 47,248 1,640,248 -
— — — 58,788 58,788 -
360,746 — — 17,766 378,512 —
47,574 194,427 207,501 84,358 609,307 97,105
17,923 1,872 167,060 6,584 209,242 398,958
— — 82,729 136,401 258,240 12,126
— 7,149 — 1,060 8,209 104,293
— 5,332 — 3,220 22,540 85,119
— — — — 468,000 —
— — — 518 72,518 —
426,243 739,587 620,597 1,780,651 6,214,246 1,382,952
— — — 16,053 1,268,922 —
24,287 — — 11,912 411,676 —
— — — 395,029 395,029 —
— 1,250,387 — 429,376 1,679,763 —
6,294,071 — — 467,229 6,761,300 —
— — 47,071 — 47,071 —
— — 1,046,323 213,099 1,350,939 33,242
— — — 3,990,378 4,012,738 —
— — — — 5,691,000 —
60,793 2,780 — 41,357 1,286,690 —
— 6,469 — 43,217 49,686 231
— — — 29 29 —
— 110,870 10,816 3,323,354 8,091,954 622,690
— (71,973) (4,592) (1,178,969) (3,264,054) (434,382)
961,158 — — 559,289 1,981,655 15,370
— — — 26,070 26,070 —
7,340,309 1,298,533 1,099,618 8,337,423 29,790,468 237,151
$ 7,766,552 2,038,120 $ 1,720,215 $ 10,118,074 36,004,714 § 1,620,103
(continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Net Assets (continued)
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ...t e
Due t0 Other FUNAS ... et
Due t0 COMPONENT UNIES ...eeuiiitiiii it e e e eeens
Due 10 0ther QOVEIMMENTS ..........iiiii e
Deferred MEVENUE ......ciii it e et
DIBPOSIES ..ttt et e e e
Contracts and NOtes Payable ...........coouiiiiiiii
AAVANCE COIIECTIONS ...t et
INTErESt PAYADIE ...t e
Benefits PAYADIE ..... ..o
Current portion of long-term obligations ...............ccoooiiiiii
Other current aDIlItIES ..........oiiii e
Total current lIabilITIES .......coouuei e
Noncurrent liabilities:
INTErfuNd PAYADIES ......oiei e
Benefits PAYADIE .......ouniiii e
LOANS PAYADIE ...t e
Lottery prizes and annUItIES .........c..uuiiiniiiiii e
Compensated absences payable ......... ..o
Certificates of participation, commercial paper,
and Other DOITOWINGS .......uuiiiii e
Capital lease obligations ...
General obligation bonds payable .............cooiiiiiiii
Revenue bonds Payable ...
Net other postemployment benefits obligation ...
Other NONCUITENt lIADIIITIES. .....cc.eiiii e
Total noncurrent Iabilities ..........coo.iiiiiii e
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt ..............ooiiiiiiiiii
Restricted — Expendable:
[0 411 {0 To7 o] o PSPPSR

DD SEIVICE ... e
Security for revenue bonds ..

| 0] 1 (=T oS PPURP PP PPPRIN
UNemploymMENt PrOGIAIMS ......cuviiiiiiieeiiie e e e et st ss e e s e e ssne e e nnn e e e snn e e s snnneeannnns
Other purposes .....
Total @XPENAADIE ...
UNPESTMCTEA ....eiiee i e

Total net assets (AefiCit) .....c..oieeeiiiiii e

Total liabilities and net assets

40

Water

Electric Power Resources
264,482 86,096
— 12,222
— 120,382
63,000 19,251
530,000 178,284
857,482 416,235
— 9,897
— 476,915
8,471,000 2,481,799
1,518 47,897
— 393,579
8,472,518 3,410,087
9,330,000 3,826,322
— 272,984
— 932,447
— 932,447
— 1,205,431
9,330,000 5,031,753

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal
Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ 33,238 36,274  $ 737  $ 127,204 § 548,031 $ 295,393
53,196 270,718 55,751 11,121 403,008 207,652
— — — — —_ 3,296
4,413 — 49,210 6 174,011 10
— — — 62,385 62,385 —
— — — 4,987 4,987 6,545
— — — — —_ 15,195
18,454 3,124 — 356 21,934 323,777
71,862 — — 53,225 207,338 —
— — 1,038,148 — 1,038,148 —
382,707 474,094 — 170,623 1,735,708 18,972
— — 73,201 5,533 78,734 7,012
563,870 784,210 1,217,047 435,440 4,274,284 877,852
— — — 2,060 2,060 133,358
— — — 5,490 5,490 —
— — 1,944,070 — 1,944,070 —
— 1,089,742 — — 1,089,742 —
— 5,394 25,727 10,290 41,411 78,056
— — — 41,410 51,307 —
— — — — — 5,722
— — — 1,107,272 1,584,187 —
6,957,492 — — 4,042,669 21,952,960 —
— 9,674 32,523 8,890 100,502 106,363
— 2,062 — 120,903 516,544 45,762
6,957,492 1,106,872 2,002,320 5,338,984 27,288,273 369,261
7,521,362 1,891,082 3,219,367 5,774,424 31,562,557 1,247,113
— 45,366 6,224 (455,208) (130,634) 165,631
228,285 — — 368,448 1,529,180 —
16,905 — — 59,120 76,025 —
— — — 453,817 453,817 —
— 147,038 — — 147,038 —
— — 1,188,966 — 1,188,966 —
— — — 460,025 460,025 —
245,190 147,038 1,188,966 1,341,410 3,855,051 —
— (45,366) (2,694,342) 3,457,448 717,740 207,359
245,190 147,038 (1,499,152) 4,343,650 4,442,157 372,990

$ 7,766,552

2,038,120 $ 1,720,215 $ 10,118,074 $ 36,004,714 $ 1,620,103

(concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Water
Electric Power Resources
OPERATING REVENUES
Unemployment and disability iNSUraNCe ................oiiiiiiiiiiii e $ — 8 —
Lottery tiCKet SAIES ........u i — —
POWET SAIES . .u.eieiii et e e et e 3,604,000 175,318
Student tUItIoN @Nd FEES .. ...t — —
SEIVICES ANA SAIES ....oiiiiiii it e e, — 739,519
INVESTMENT AN INTEIEST . ..nie e e e et e e e aa e — —
1= PP — —
16043 T PR — —
Total operating FEVENUES ........ccuiieiireiiiiin e s rr s r s rre srn s saa s san s ans s s nnnas 3,604,000 914,837
OPERATING EXPENSES
LOMEIY PFIZES ..ot et — —
Power purchases (net of recoverable power COStS) ..........coiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,568,000 206,632
PEISONAI SEIVICES ...uuiiitiit e e ettt et et e e et e e e e — 220,493
SUPPIES ettt e e e e et et — —
Services and charges 36,000 267,473
(D= o] =To1 = i{o] o H AU OO PPN — 77,269
Distributions t0 DENEfICIANES ......ccueieeii e — —
INEEIEST EXPENSE ...t e — —
Amortization of deferred charges — —
Other ..o — —
Total operating expenses 3,604,000 771,867
Operating INCOME (IOSS) ....c.uiiuie ittt ettt ettt e e e et e e e e e e aen e eeens — 142,970
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment and iNtereSt INCOME ..o e e e a e 956,000 —
Interest expense and fiscal Charges ..o (956,000) (130,054)
Lottery payments for @dUCAtION .............iiiiiiiiiiii e — —
L (=Y PP PEUUPPPPP — (12,916)
Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES) ......cueuirruuirrusirrmnsrrrasrrnrrsassrrssrrassssansssennss — (142,970)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers .............coiiiiiiiiii — —
Capital CONTADULIONS ... it e e et e e e eeanas — —
= U5 (=Y £ o PP — —
U0 (= £ U | PP — —
Change N NEE ASSELS .. .iui it et — —
Total net assets, July 1, 2008 .........ceuieiiuiimiiiirrir e s s s e s rn s srn s snnnnnss — 1,205,431
Total net assets (deficit), June 30, 2009 .........cuciimmiimeiiriir e $ — 3 1,205,431
* Restated

42 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Fund Financial Statements

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal

Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
— 3 — 3 14,197,739  $ — 8 14,197,739 —

— 2,954,839 — — 2,954,839 —

— — — — 3,779,318 —

— — — 604,352 604,352 —

— — — 111,839 851,358 2,764,254
13,700 — — 160,318 174,018 —
352,431 — — 20,481 372,912 —
20 — — 162,609 162,629 —
366,151 2,954,839 14,197,739 1,059,599 23,097,165 2,764,254
— 1,556,121 — — 1,556,121 —

— — — — 3,774,632 —

— 49,168 158,459 216,521 644,641 787,429

— 11,350 — — 11,350 13,369
78,489 322,708 66,569 194,237 965,476 1,897,634
— 12,965 563 91,526 182,323 44,598

— — 19,383,477 — 19,383,477 —
335,248 — — 248,483 583,731 418
6,728 — — 2,439 9,167 —
— — — 27,837 27,837 —
420,465 1,952,312 19,609,068 781,043 27,138,755 2,743,448
(54,314) 1,002,527 (5,411,329) 278,556 (4,041,590) 20,806

— 96,073 76,236 37,613 1,165,922 1,081
— (89,324) — (7,747) (1,183,125) (1,439)

— (1,027,729) — — (1,027,729) —
— 408 — 21,100 8,592 (358)
— (1,020,572) 76,236 50,966 (1,036,340) (716)
(54,314) (18,045) (5,335,093) 329,522 (5,077,930) 20,090
— — — 71,882 71,882 —

— — — 204 204 397
(50) — — (21,169) (21,219) (66,200)
(54,364) (18,045) (5,335,093) 380,439 (5,027,063) (45,713)
299,554 165,083 3,835,941 3,963,211 9,469,220 418,703
245,190 $ 147,038 $ (1,499,152) $ 4,343,650 $ 4,442,157 372,990

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Water
Electric Power Resources

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers/employers
Receipts from interfund services provided

$ 3,645,000 $ 964,880

Payments to suppliers ...........ccc.cccooeene. (3,986,000) (425,510)
Payments to employees — (220,493)
Payments for interfund services Used ..............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii — —
Payments for LOHery Prizes ..........cooouiiiiiiii i — —
Claims paid to other than emPlOYEES ...........iiiiiiiii e — —
Other receipts (PAYMENTS) ......iiii it ettt 30,000 (71,178)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ..........cccoueiiiieiiirciin i, (311,000) 247,699
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Changes in interfund payables and loans payable .............ccoiiiiiiiiii e — —
Proceeds from DONAS ..........iiiiiii e 6,000 —
Receipts 0f DONA Charges .......coouueiii e e 875,000 —
Retirement of general obligation bonds ... — —
Retirement of revVenUE DONAS ..........oiiuiiiii e (493,000) —
Retirement of notes payable and commercial PAPET ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiieeiie e — —
Interest paid on operating debt ...........oiiiiii e (399,000) —
TRANSTEIS N .o — —
LI LA 51 (=T £ o1 | PP — —
Lottery payments for @UCALION ..............iiitiiiii e — —
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities ..........ccceceiiirreiiniinnnnnnns (11,000) —
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Changes in interfund payables and loans payable ............ccccooiiiiiiiiiin e, — —
Acquisition of infangible assets ... — —
Acquisition of capital assets .............c.cooeeeiins — (102,116)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets — —
Proceeds from notes payable and commercial Paper ............c.ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e, — 23,905
Principal paid on notes payable and commercial paper ...............cccouiiiiiiiiiiiii e — (383,360)
Retirement of general obligation bonds ... — (52,695)
Proceeds from reVeNUE DONAS .......couiiniii e e e e e e e e e eas — 291,784
Retirement of revenue bONAS ....... ... — (344,715)
INErESt PAIT ...t e — (144,065)
GFANES TECERIVEA ...t et ettt et e — —
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities ............c..cccuune.e, — (361,262)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments .............ccooviiiiiiiincinns — (201,740)
Proceeds from maturity and sale of investments 150,000 201,739
Change in interfund receivables and loans receivable ...............coocoiiiiiiiiii — 1,744
Earnings on iNVESIMENTS .......iiui i e 97,000 18,705
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ...........cccovviiiiiinii i 247,000 20,448
Net increase (decrease) in cash and pooled iNVeStMENtS ...........cccouviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (75,000) (938,115)
Cash and pooled investments at July 1, 2008 .........c.ccouimimimrmiiir e s een e 2,861,000 522,804
Cash and pooled investments at June 30, 2009 $ 2,786,000 $ 429,689

44 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Fund Financial Statements

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal

Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ 689,492 $ 2,934,524 3 14,173,941  § 796,999 $ 23,204,836 $ 2,662,368
— — — 2,794 2,794 100,095
(76,111) (124,161) (66,571) (186,085) (4,864,438) (1,857,344)
— (39,011) (129,544) (208,623) (597,671) (702,316)
— (10,470) — (904) (11,374) (40,210)

— (1,857,931) — — (1,857,931) —
— (208,110) (18,844,058) 2) (19,052,170) (4,050)
(256,427) 68,084 (215,147) (119,507) (564,175) (140,131)
356,954 762,925 (5,081,379) 284,672 (3,740,129) 18,412
— — 1,944,070 (457) 1,943,613 (112,679)

— — — — 6,000 —

— — — — 875,000 —

— — — (152,265) (152,265) —

— — — (81,865) (574,865) —

— — — (10,500) (10,500) —
— — — (8,975) (407,975) (30)

— — — 398 398 397
(50) — — (22,964) (23,014) (66,200)

— (1,015,586) — — (1,015,586) —
(50) (1,015,586) 1,944,070 (276,628) 640,806 (178,512)

— — — 1,022 1,022 —

— — — (18) (18) —
(639,673) (7,862) — (912,735) (1,662,386) (31,504)
— 104 207 272,389 272,700 3,173

— — — 130,982 154,887 —
— — — (126,924) (160,284) (11,373)

— — — — (52,695) —
643,328 — — 458,465 1,393,577 —
(360,559) — — (43,572) (748,846) —
— — — (129,238) (273,303) (1,827)

— — — 73,781 73,781 —
(356,904) (7,758) 207 (275,848) (1,001,565) (41,531)
— (677,710) — (372,569) (1,252,019) —

— 943,159 2,548,347 258,239 4,101,484 —
— — (1,046,323) (209,439) (1,254,018) (33,242)

— 10,237 76,236 38,755 240,933 1,571
— 275,686 1,578,260 (285,014) 1,836,380 (31,671)
— 15,267 (1,558,842) (552,818) (2,264,508) (233,302)

— 270,476 1,604,136 1,844,060 7,102,476 918,653

$ — 3 285,743 $ 45294 $ 1,291,242 § 4,837,968 $ 685,351

(continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 45
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Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Water
Electric Power Resources
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating INCOME (IOSS) ....cuuiiiie ettt ettt e ettt e e e et e eeen s — 3 142,970
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Interest expense on operating debt ... — —
1= o] =Y o= 1o o PR — 77,269
Accretion of capital appreciation bonds ... — —
Provisions and allOWaNCES ...... ...ttt et eaae — —
Accrual of deferred Charges ... — —
Amortization Of AISCOUNTS .......oeniit e e e e eeaes — —
Amortization of deferred Charges ..........oooiuiiiiii i — 44,870
L33 — (71,178)
Change in assets and liabilities:
RECEIVADIES ... e — 34,205
Due from Other fUNAS ... e e e — —
Due from other gOVErNMENTS .........couuiii e — (12,142)
Prepaid ItEMS ... e — —
L[ 01Y7=T g1 (] (=T PP — 5,047
Net investment in direct fin@ncing 1ASES .........ocouuiiiiiiiii e — —
Recoverable POWET COSS (NMET) ......uiiie e (291,000) —
Other CUITENT @SSEES ...eiiii i e et e e 189,000 —
LO@NS FECEIVADIE ... e e e e aa s — —
INtErfuNd rECEIVADIE ...... oo e — —
Accounts payable (209,000) 27,086
Due to other funds — (1,838)
Due to component units .... — —
Due to other governments ............... — 1,410
Deposits ......ovveiiiiiii — —
Contracts and notes payable ... — —
Advance collections ............c..ccoeiiinennnn. — —
Interest payable ...........ccoooeiiiiiiininnnn. — —
Other current liabilities .................... — —
Deferred revenue ............ccoceeuunnnn. — —
Benefits payable ...............c..ooeni — —
Lottery prizes and annuities ............. — —
Compensated absences payable ... — —
Capital lease obligations .............. — —
Other noncurrent liabilities ... — —
Total @dJUSTMENTS ...t et e e e (311,000) 104,729
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ..........cccooiriiiiiiiii s (311,000) $ 247,699
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
Interest accreted on aNNUItIZEA PriZES ........viviiniiii e —  $ —
Unclaimed Lottery prizes directly transferred to Education Fund ...............ccocooiiiiiiiiinnn, — —
Unrealized 10SS 0N INVESIMENT .......iiiii i e (150,000) —
Capital acquisitions financed through notes payable... — —
Modification to notes payable............coooiiiiii — —
Long-term debt retirement from proceeds on issuance of boNds.............ccceiiiieiiiiii e — 266,680
46 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities

Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal

Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ (54,314) $ 1,002,527 $ (5,411,329) 278,556 $  (4,041,590) $ 20,806
— — — 129,238 129,238 388
— 12,965 563 91,526 182,323 44,598
1,381 — — 167 1,548 —
— (143) — 11,293 11,150 —
(5,015) — — — (5,015) —
(4,965) — — 92 (4,873) —
6,727 2,746 — 4,537 58,880 —
(141) 4,947 — 25,379 (40,993) —
64,420 (34,937) (23,798) 5,249 45,139 (41,732)
(2,786) (568) (216,431) 7,941 (211,844) 65,952
— — (48,244) 3,086 (57,300) 2,355
— — — 3,579 3,579 (15,373)
— 1,510 — 432 6,989 4,076
342,438 — — (125,742) 216,696 —
— — — — (291,000) —
— 3,389 — (16,706) 175,683 —
— — — (191,116) (191,116) —
— — — 23 23 —
351 4,890 2) 73,032 (103,643) 22,762
(24) (157) 69,381 (13,346) 54,016 (75,255)
—_ — — — —_ 4
2,379 — 34,418 (72) 38,135 (22,346)
— — — 256 256 157
— — — — — (1,573)
(508) 77 — (2,932) (3,363) (72,008)
7,011 — — 4,396 11,407 —
— — (43,333) (3,400) (46,733) 3,616
— — — 1,736 1,736 —
— — 528,481 (2,347) 526,134 —
— (235,069) — — (235,069) —
— 47 12,830 4,549 17,426 30,052
— — — — —_ (1,646)
— 701 16,085 (4,734) 12,052 53,579
411,268 (239,602) 329,950 6,116 301,461 (2,394)
$ 356,954 $ 762,925 $ (5,081,379) 284,672 $ (3,740,129) $ 18,412
(concluded)
$ —  $ 89,325 § — — S 89,325 $ —
— 20,965 — — 20,965 —
— (966) — — (150,966) —
— — — — — 7,033
— — — — — (319)
— — — — 266,680 —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds and Similar Component Units

June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands) Pension
and Other Investment
Private Employee Trust
Purpose Benefit Local Agency
Trust Trust Investment Agency
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments ...........cccocciiiiiiiiiiiniannns $ 47,919 $ 2,179,757 $ 25,251,903 $ 3,404,170
Investments, at fair value:
ShOM-teIM ..o — 13,878,375 — —
Equity securities ... 44,368 143,776,665 — —
Debt SECUNLIES ....ovvieiiiiiiiiee e — 78,389,542 — —
Real eState .........ccoiiiiiiiiei e — 26,019,447 — —
Other ........ 2,958,548 47,678,713 — —
Securities lending collateral .............ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiies — 47,337,352 — —
Total investments .........c.eeeveeeiiiiiiiieee e, 3,002,916 357,080,094 — —
Receivables (net) ....... 26,458 6,766,580 — 690,109
Due from other funds 11 413,336 — 11,693,161
Due from other governments ...........cccooveiiiiiiiiiiiiininnns — 7 — 15,877
Prepaid Items .........ccooeiiiiiiiiiin. — — — 19,437
Interfund receivables — — — 199,437
Loans receivable .........ccooiiiiiiiii e — — — 78,644
Other assets ........... 148,079 685,589 — 227
Total assets 3,225,383 367,125,363 25,251,903 $ 16,101,062
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ... 9,481 3,327,367 50 $ 6,005,065
Duetoother funds .........cccoiiiiiii e, 26,441 1,025 234 —
Due to other governments ..............ccooeeiiiiiiiiiii i, — 1,384 98,481 8,306,905
Tax overpayments .........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieei e — — — 1,071
Benefits payable ... — 1,842,887 — 177,278
DEPOSIES ..t 148,079 — — 964,393
Advance collections ...........ccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e — — — 57,129
Securities lending obligations .................ooiiii. — 48,594,665 — —
Interfund payables..............cooiiiii — — — 69,295
Loans payables. ... ..o — 5,387,269 — —
Other liabilities .......cooiiuiiiii 4,239 1,913,179 — 519,926
Total liabilities .......covvverrreiirriireei e eee e 188,240 61,067,776 98,765 $ 16,101,062
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits, pool participants,
and other PUIPOSES ......cevuueerrrrenererrnrarrrrreerrrmnnnens $ 3,037,143 $ 306,057,587 $ 25,153,138
48 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Fund Financial Statements

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds and Similar Component Units

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands) Pension
and Other Investment
Private Employee Trust
Purpose Benefit Local Agency
Trust Trust Investment
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
EMPIOYET ..ot e e $ — 3 11,425,820 $ —
Plan MemDEr .. ... e — 7,243,015 —
Total contributions ............iiiiii e — 18,668,835 —
Investment income:
Net depreciation in fair value of investments ..............ccooooiiiiiininnn, (355,520) (101,838,553) —
Interest, dividends, and other investment income ................ccoeeeeenne. 77,730 6,610,006 515,568
Less: investment eXpense ..........oooiuiiiiiiiiiiiii (115,353) (4,022,792) —
Net investment iNCOME ...........uuiiiiiiiiiii e (393,143) (99,251,339) 515,568
Receipts from depositors .... 868,537 — 28,961,040
(013 T=T SRR — 25,589 —
Total AddItIONS ....cecveeeeeeeeieieeieereeee e et e sreeeaeseeeseessesessseeseensesaes 475,394 (80,556,915) 29,476,608
DEDUCTIONS
Distributions paid and payable to participants — 20,943,148 513,922
Refunds of contribUtions ...........coouiiiiiiii — 295,957 —
AdMINISTrative EXPENSE .....cuuieiieieee e 25 561,314 1,646
Payments to and for depositors ............oceuuiiiiiiiiiiii e 579,595 344,735 28,968,815
Total deducCtions .........iiiieeeiiiiiiie 579,620 22,145,154 29,484,383
Change iNn Net assets ........oouuuiiiiiiii e (104,226) (102,702,069) (7,775)
Net assets, July 1, 2008 ..........cccruueiimimmmnniinren e s 3,141,369 408,759,656 * 25,160,913
Net assets, June 30, 2009 ...........cermmrmuiirmrmmninrirr s e $ 3,037,143 $ 306,057,587 $ 25,153,138
* Restated

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 49
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Statement of Net Assets
Discretely Presented Component Units — Enterprise Activity

June 30, 2009

(amounts in thousands) California
University State Housing Public Nonmajor
of Compensation Finance Employees’ Component
California Insurance Agency Benefits Units Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments ......... $ 671,159 $ 1,334,074 $ 1,506,838 $ 544297 $ 666,287 $ 4,722,655
Investments ........c..coviiiiiiiiniinnannns 4,432,309 1,826,958 237,604 14,867 187,572 6,699,310
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments ....... — — — — 72,832 72,832
Investments .........ccoceevveeeeeeieciiinens — — — — 72,438 72,438
Receivables (net) ...........ccoeeieen. 2,318,597 742,377 376,446 4,229 346,368 3,788,017
Due from primary government ......... 68,562 — — 2,623 991 72,176
Due from other governments .......... 349,954 — — 35,111 59,548 444,613
Prepaid items ..........cccoeiiiiniinnn. — 1,377 583 — 1,734 3,694
INVentories ........cocveeiiiiiiiieee, 166,229 — —_ — 227 166,456
Other current assets ...................... 148,847 17,661 68 — 143,010 309,586
Total current assets .................. 8,155,657 3,922,447 2,121,539 601,127 1,551,007 16,351,777
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments ...... — — — — 99,086 99,086
Investments ...........ccoeiiiiiiiinn, — — — — 7,513 7,513
Investments ...........ccceeeenes 15,812,968 17,303,017 241,648 2,526,487 917,467 36,801,587
Receivables (net) 680,674 — — — 280,511 961,185
Loans receivable .......................... — — 8,013,055 — 333,665 8,346,720
Deferred charges .......................... — — 38,343 — 1,740 40,083
Capital assets:
Land ..o 695,640 64,873 — — 109,381 869,894
Collections — nondepreciable ........ 307,137 — — — 5,316 312,453
Buildings and other depreciable
PropPenty ......vvveeveeieeieeieeee e 30,809,219 653,666 1,515 — 1,873,420 33,337,820
Less: accumulated depreciation ....  (13,409,964) (290,057) (709) — (736,766) (14,437,496)
Construction in progress .............. 2,874,883 — — — 58,692 2,933,575
Other noncurrent assets ................. 260,386 — 95,669 — 89,166 445,221
Total noncurrent assets ............. 38,030,943 17,731,499 8,389,521 2,526,487 3,039,191 69,717,641
Total assets .......ccouuuiieenirennnn. $ 46,186,600 $ 21,653,946 $ 10,511,060 $ 3,127,614 $ 4,590,198 $ 86,069,418

52 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Component Units Financial Statements

California
University State Housing Public Nonmajor
of Compensation Finance Employees’ Component
California Insurance Agency Benefits Units Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ...............cceeeee $ 1,824,377 $ 66,319 $ 48549 $ 362,819 $ 101,567 $ 2,403,631
Due to primary government 516,295 — — — — 516,295
Due to other governments .............. — — 5 — 2,105 2,110
Dividends payable ........................ — 1,000 — — — 1,000
Deferred revenue ..............cceeneenen. 960,688 — — — 59,577 1,020,265
Deposits ...ccueieiiiiiiiie e 331,773 — 170,391 — 22,923 525,087
Contracts and notes payable .......... — — — — 21,847 21,847
Advance collections ...................... — 94,180 — — 544 94,724
Interest payable ...............ccoooeiil — — 163,574 — 2,391 165,965
Securities lending obligations ......... 2,388,326 — — — — 2,388,326
Benefits payable ...............c.....eilL — 1,759,203 — — — 1,759,203
Current portion of long-term
obligations ..........ccooeeiiiiiiiiiii 1,270,987 72,042 138,687 28,872 116,633 1,627,221
Other current liabilities ................... 1,638,274 130,162 80,579 77,248 215,984 2,142,247
Total current liabilities ............... 8,930,720 2,122,906 601,785 468,939 543,571 12,667,921
Noncurrent liabilities:
Benefits payable ...............c...ooill — 13,624,144 — 2,756,587 — 16,380,731
Loans payable ..........cccoeeiiiiiiine. — — — 29,873 — 29,873
Compensated absences payable .... 219,820 — — — 10,766 230,586
Certificates of participation,
commercial paper, and
other borrowings ............cccceeeinnee — — — — 87,428 87,428
Capital lease obligations ................ 2,234,367 — — — 370,995 2,605,362
Revenue bonds payable ................ 7,518,300 — 8,107,250 — 521,040 16,146,590
Net other postemployment benefits . 2,377,128 157,221 4,594 4,262 117,094 2,660,299
Pollution remediation obligations ..... 41,198 — — — — 41,198
Other noncurrent liabilities .............. 1,159,086 351,287 49,963 — 293,465 1,853,801
Total noncurrent liabilities 13,549,899 14,132,652 8,161,807 2,790,722 1,400,788 40,035,868
Total liabilities ..........ccceceeeene 22,480,619 16,255,558 8,763,592 3,259,661 1,944,359 52,703,789
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of
related debt ........oooiiiiiiiiiinn, 10,822,512 428,482 806 — 561,581 11,813,381
Restricted:
Nonexpendable ...............ccooeee. 2,813,868 — — — 698,221 3,512,089
Expendable:
Endowments and gifts ................. 5,741,040 — — — 5,067 5,746,107
Education ..........cccovveeeieiiiiiiiieen. 768,219 — — — 535,083 1,303,302
Indenture .......ccooeeveeeeeiiiieeeee e, — — 534,440 — — 534,440
Employee benefits — — — 679,592 — 679,592
Workers’ compensation liability ... — 4,969,906 — — — 4,969,906
Statute .ooceeeeeeiiee — — 1,212,222 — 263,389 1,475,611
Other purposes ........cccoeeeveereeecns — — — — 244,089 244,089
Total expendable ...........cccoeeee 6,509,259 4,969,906 1,746,662 679,592 1,047,628 14,953,047
Unrestricted 3,560,342 — — (811,639) 338,409 3,087,112
Total net assets (deficit) ........ 23,705,981 5,398,388 1,747,468 (132,047) 2,645,839 33,365,629

Total liabilities and net assets $ 46,186,600 $ 21,653,946 $ 10,511,060 $ 3,127,614 $ 4,590,198 $ 86,069,418

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 53



State of California Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Statement of Activities
Discretely Presented Component Units — Enterprise Activity

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

State California
University Compensation = Housing Public Nonmajor
of Insurance Finance Employees’ Component
California Fund Agency Benefits Units Total
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services .........c.ccocovevvvvennn. $ 13,211,909 $ 592,827 $ 26,982 $ — $ 556,769 $ 14,388,487
Scholarships and fellowships .............. 451,263 — — — 42,108 493,371
SUPPLIES - .eeeneeeeie e 2,210,319 — — — 8,477 2,218,796
Services and charges 309,842 81,037 212,117 2,178,999 1,313,758 4,095,753
Department of Energy laboratories ...... 661,863 — — — — 661,863
Depreciation ...........coveeeuieiiiiiiiiiieiinns 1,197,404 43,801 201 — 69,801 1,311,207
Distributions to beneficiaries ............... — 1,342,282 — — — 1,342,282
Interest expense and fiscal charges ..... 355,882 — 427,297 — 42,395 825,574
Amortization of deferred charges ......... — 158,207 56,760 — 100 215,067
Grants provided ..........c.ccceviiiiiieiinnn. 444,730 — 72,832 — — 517,562
Other ..o, 2,876,106 156,875 — — 104,735 3,137,716
Total operating expenses .............. 21,719,318 2,375,029 796,189 2,178,999 2,138,143 29,207,678
PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for services ...........ccccceveeeeni, 10,865,007 1,587,327 532,137 1,908,855 1,289,129 16,182,455
Operating grants and contributions ...... 7,449,115 — 521,265 — 538,189 8,508,569
Capital grants and contributions .......... 154,998 — — — 15,954 170,952
Total program revenues ................ 18,469,120 1,587,327 1,053,402 1,908,855 1,843,272 24,861,976
Net (expense) revenue .................... (3,250,198) (787,702) 257,213 (270,144) (294,871) (4,345,702)
GENERAL REVENUES
Investment and interest income (loss) .. (1,490,931) 1,152,651 11,033 (343,442) (160,395) (831,084)
Other ..o 1,848,580 130,000 34,118 249 276,170 2,289,117
Total general revenues .................. 357,649 1,282,651 45,151 (343,193) 115,775 1,458,033
Change in net assets ............ccc.oec... (2,892,549) 494,949 302,364 (613,337) (179,096) (2,887,669)
Net assets, July 1,2008 ..........cccuverenes 26,598,530 * 4,903,439 1,445,104 481,290 2,824,935 36,253,298
Net assets (deficit), June 30, 2009 ....... $ 23,705,981 $ 5,398,388 $ 1,747,468 $ (132,047) $ 2,645,839 $ 33,365,629
* Restated

54 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present information on the financial activities of the State of California
over which the Governor, the Legislature, and other elected officials have direct or indirect governing and fiscal
control. These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The provisions of the following Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statements have been implemented for the year ended June 30, 2009:

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations; and

GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments.
A. Reporting Entity

These financial statements present the primary government of the State and its component units. The primary
government consists of all funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not
legally separate from the State. Component units are organizations that are legally separate from the State
but for which the State is financially accountable or organizations whose relationship with the State is such that
exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The decision to include
a component unit in the State’s reporting entity is based on several criteria, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency, and financial accountability. Following is information on the blended, fiduciary, and discretely
presented component units of the State.

1. Blended Component Units

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the primary
government’s operations. Therefore, data from these blended component units are integrated into the
appropriate funds for reporting purposes.

Building authorities are blended component units because they have been created through the use of joint
exercise-of-powers agreements with various cities to finance the construction of state buildings. The building
authorities are reported as capital projects funds. As a result, capital lease arrangements between the building
authorities and the State in the amount of $480 million have been eliminated from the financial statements.
Instead, only the underlying capital assets and the debt used to acquire them are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. For information on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of
the building authorities, contact the State Controller's Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting,
P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, California 94250-5872.

The Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation (GSTSC) is a not-for-profit corporation established
through legislation in September 2002 solely for the purpose of purchasing Tobacco Settlement Revenues
from the State. The five voting members of the State Public Works Board serve ex officio as the directors of
the corporation. GSTSC is authorized to issue bonds necessary to provide sufficient funds for carrying out its
purpose. GSTSC is reported in the combining statements in the Nonmajor Governmental Funds section as a
special revenue fund. For information on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of GSTSC, contact
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the Department of Finance, Resources, Environmental and Capital Outlay Section, 915 L Street, 9th Floor,
Sacramento, California 94814.

2. Fiduciary Component Units

The State has two fiduciary component units that administer pension and other employee benefit trust funds.
These entities are legally separate from the State and meet the definition of a component unit because they
are fiscally dependent on the State; however, due to their fiduciary nature, they are presented in the Fiduciary
Fund Statements as pension and other employee benefit trust funds, along with other primary government
fiduciary funds.

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) administers pension and health benefit plans
for state employees, non-teaching school employees, and employees of California public agencies. Its Board
of Administration has plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for the investment of monies and the
administration of the plans. CalPERS administers the following seven pension and other employee benefit
trust funds: the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund, the Judges’ Retirement Fund, the Judges’ Retirement
Fund Il, the Legislators’ Retirement Fund, the State Peace Officers’ and Firefighters’ Defined Contribution Plan
Fund, the public employee Replacement Benefits Fund, and the public employee Supplemental Contributions
Program Fund. Copies of CalPERS’ separately issued financial statements may be obtained in writing from the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System, Fiscal Services Division, P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento,
California 94229-2703.

The California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) administers pension benefit plans for California
public school teachers and certain other employees of the public school system. CalSTRS administers three
pension and other employee benefit trust funds: the State Teachers’ Retirement Fund; the Teachers’ Health
Benefits Fund; and the Pension2 Program, formally known as the Voluntary Investment Program. Copies of
CalSTRS’ separately issued financial statements may be obtained from the California State Teachers’
Retirement System, P.O. Box 15275, Sacramento, California 95851-0275.

3. Discretely Presented Component Units

Enterprise activity of discretely presented component units is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements. Discretely presented component units are legally separate from the
primary government and mostly provide services to entities and individuals outside the primary government.
Discretely presented component units that report enterprise activity include the University of California, the
State Compensation Insurance Fund, the California Housing Finance Agency, the Public Employees’ Benefits
Fund, and nonmajor component units.

The University of California was founded in 1868 as a public, state-supported, land grant institution. It was
written into the State Constitution of 1879 as a public trust to be administered by a governing board, the
Regents of the University of California. The University of California is a component unit of the State because
the State appoints a voting majority of the regents and because expenditures for the support of various
university programs and capital outlay are appropriated by the annual Budget Act. The University of California
offers defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution pension plans to its employees through the
University of California Retirement System (UCRS). The UCRS is a discretely presented fiduciary unit of the
university; and as such, the financial information of the UCRS is not included in the financial statements of this
report. Copies of the University of California’s and the UCRS’ separately issued financial statements may be
obtained from the University of California, Financial Management, 1111 Franklin Street, 10th Floor, Oakland,
California 94607-5200.
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The State Compensation Insurance Fund (SCIF) is a self-supporting enterprise created to offer insurance
protection to employers at the lowest possible cost. It operates in competition with other insurance carriers to
provide services to the State, counties, cities, school districts, and other public corporations. It is a component
unit of the State because the State appoints all five voting members of SCIF’s governing board and has the
authority to approve or modify SCIF’s budget. Copies of SCIF’s financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2008, may be obtained from the State Compensation Insurance Fund, P.O. Box 420807,
San Francisco, California 94142-0807.

The California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA) was created by the Zenovich-Moscone-Chacon Housing
and Home Finance Act, as amended. CalHFA'’s purpose is to meet the housing needs of persons and families
of low and moderate income. It is a component unit of the State because the State appoints a voting majority
of CalHFA’s governing board and has the authority to approve or modify its budget. Copies of CalHFA’s
financial statements may be obtained from the California Housing Finance Agency, P.O. Box 4034,
Sacramento, California 95812.

The Public Employees’ Benefits Fund, which is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System and accounts for contributions and premiums for public employee long-term care plans and for
administration of a deferred compensation program. Copies of CalPERS’ separately issued financial
statements may be obtained in writing from the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, Fiscal
Services Division, P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento, California 94229-2703.

State legislation created various nonmajor component units to provide certain services outside the primary
government and to provide certain private and public entities with a low-cost source of financing for programs
deemed to be in the public interest. The California Pollution Control Financing Authority, the San Joaquin River
Conservancy, and the district agricultural associations are considered component units because they have a
fiscal dependency on the primary government. The California Educational Facilities Authority is considered a
component unit because its exclusion from the statements would be misleading because of its relationship to
the primary government. California State University auxiliary organizations are considered component units
because they exist entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the universities. The remaining nonmajor
component units are considered component units because the majority of members of their governing boards
are appointed by or are members of the primary government, because the primary government can impose its
will on the entity, or because the entity provides a specific financial benefit to the primary government. For
information on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of these component units, contact the State
Controller's Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting, P.O.Box 942850, Sacramento, California
94250-5872.

The nonmajor component units are:

The California Alternative Energy and Advanced Transportation Financing Authority, which provides
financing for alternative energy and advanced transportation technologies;

The California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank, which provides financing for business
development and public improvements;

The California Pollution Control Financing Authority, which provides financing for pollution control facilities;

The California Health Facilities Financing Authority, which provides financing for the construction, equipping,
and acquisition of health facilities;
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The California Educational Facilities Authority, which issues revenue bonds to finance loans for students
attending public and private nonprofit colleges and universities and to assist private educational institutions
of higher learning in financing the expansion and construction of educational facilities (the EdFund financial
report included in this entity is as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008);

The California School Finance Authority, which provides loans to school and community college districts to
assist them in obtaining equipment and facilities;

California State University auxiliary organizations, which provide services primarily to university students
through foundations, associated student organizations, student unions, food service entities, book stores,
and similar organizations. Starting in fiscal year 2008-09, the California State University, Channel Island Site
and Financing authorities, which used to be blended component units under the California State
University Programs special revenue fund, are included as part of the California State University auxiliary
organizations;

District agricultural associations, which exhibit all of the industries, industrial enterprises, resources, and
products of the state (the district agricultural association’s financial report is as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2008);

The University of California Hastings College of the Law, which was established as the law department of
the University of California to provide legal education programs and operates independently under its own
board of directors. The college has a discretely presented component unit, the Foundation, that provides
private sources of funds for academic programs, scholarships, and faculty research;

The San Joaquin River Conservancy, which was created to acquire and manage public lands within the San
Joaquin River Parkway; and

The California Urban Waterfront Area Restoration Financing Authority, which provides financing for coastal
and inland urban waterfront restoration projects.

4. Joint Venture

A joint venture is an entity resulting from a contractual arrangement; it is owned, operated, or governed by two
or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control. In such an arrangement, the
participants retain an ongoing financial interest or an ongoing financial responsibility in the entity. These
entities are not part of the primary government or a component unit.

The State participates in a joint venture called the Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA). CADA was
created in 1978 by the joint exercise of powers agreement between the primary government and the City of
Sacramento for the location of state buildings and other improvements. CADA is a public entity, separate from
the primary government and the city, and is administered by a board of five members: two appointed by the
primary government, two appointed by the city, and one appointed by the affirmative vote of at least three of
the other four members of the board. The primary government designates the chairperson of the board.
Although the primary government does not have an equity interest in CADA, it does have an ongoing financial
interest. Based upon the appointment authority, the primary government has the ability to indirectly influence
CADA to undertake special projects for the citizenry of the participants. The primary government subsidizes
CADA’s operations by leasing land to CADA without consideration; however, the primary government is not
obligated to do so. At June 30, 2009, CADA had total assets of $33.0 million, total liabilities of $19.3 million,
and total net assets of $13.7 million. Total revenues for the fiscal year were $10.8 million and expenses were
$9.0 million, resulting in a change in net assets of $1.8 million. Because the primary government does not
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have an equity interest in CADA, CADA’s financial information is not included in the financial statements of this
report. Separately issued financial statements may be obtained from the Capitol Area Development Authority,
1522 14th Street, Sacramento, California 95814-5958.

5. Related Organizations

A related organization is an organization for which a primary government is accountable because that
government appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board, but for which it is not financially
accountable.

Chapter 854 of the Statutes of 1996 created an Independent System Operator, a state-chartered, nonprofit
market institution. The Independent System Operator provides centralized control of the statewide electrical
transmission grid to ensure the efficient use and reliable operation of the transmission system. A five-member
oversight board, comprised of three appointees of the Governor, an appointee of the Senate Committee on
Rules, and an appointee of the Speaker of the Assembly, oversees the Independent System Operator. In
addition, the Governor appoints the five members of a separate governing board. The State’s accountability for
this institution does not extend beyond making the initial oversight board appointments. Because the primary
government is not financially accountable for the Independent System Operator, the financial information of
this institution is not included in the financial statements of this report. For information on how to obtain copies
of the financial statements of the Independent System Operator, contact the State Controller’'s Office, Division
of Accounting and Reporting, P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, CA 94250-5872.

The California Earthquake Authority (CEA), a legally separate organization, offers basic earthquake insurance
for California homeowners, renters, condominium owners, and mobile home owners. A three-member board of
state-elected officials governs the CEA. The State’s accountability for this institution does not extend beyond
making the appointments. Because the primary government is not financially accountable for the CEA, the
financial information of this institution is not included in the financial statements of this report. For information
on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of the CEA, contact the California Earthquake Authority,
801 K Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814,

The Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA), which is not part of the State’s reporting entity, was created by the
California Legislature in 1997 to administer a portion of the toll revenues collected from the San Francisco Bay
Area’s seven state-owned toll bridges and to have program oversight related to certain bridge construction
projects. In 2005, the California Legislature transferred toll-bridge administration responsibility from the
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to BATA. This responsibility includes consolidation of all
toll-bridge revenue under BATA’s administration. BATA is a blended component unit of the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission. Additional information may be obtained from the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission, 101 Eighth Street, Oakland, California 94607.
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B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements (the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) give
information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. The primary
government is reported separately from legally separate component units for which the State is financially
accountable. Within the primary government, the State’s governmental activities, which are normally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from the
statements, with the exception of amounts between governmental and business-type activities, which are
presented as internal balances and transfers. Centralized services provided by the General Fund for other
funds are charged as direct costs to the funds that received those services. Also, the General Fund recovers
the cost of centralized services provided to federal programs from the federal government.

The Statement of Net Assets reports all of the financial and capital resources of the government as a whole in
a format where assets equal liabilities plus net assets. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to
which the expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Program revenues include charges to
customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function. Program revenues also include grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items that are not program-related are
reported as general revenues.

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds and similar
component units, and discretely presented component units. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a
self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is
used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions.
The State maintains the minimum number of funds consistent with legal and managerial requirements.
Fiduciary funds, although excluded from the government-wide statements, are included in the fund financial
statements. Major governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor governmental and proprietary funds are grouped into separate columns. Discretely
presented component unit statements, which follow the fiduciary fund statements, also separately report the
enterprise activity of the major discretely presented component units. In this report, the enterprise activity of
nonmajor discretely presented component units is grouped in a separate column.

Governmental fund types are used primarily to account for services provided to the general public without
direct charge.

The State reports the following major governmental funds.

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the State. It accounts for transactions related to resources
obtained and used for those services that do not need to be accounted for in another fund.

The Federal Fund accounts for the receipt and use of grants, entitlements, and shared revenues received
from the federal government.

The Transportation Fund accounts for fuel taxes, including the State’s diesel, motor vehicle, and fuel use

taxes; bond proceeds; automobile registration fees; and other revenues that are used for transportation
purposes, including highway and passenger rail construction and transportation safety programs.
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Proprietary fund types focus on the determination of operating income, changes in net assets, financial
position, and cash flows.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

For its proprietary funds, the State applies all applicable GASB pronouncements. In addition, the State applies
all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Committee on Accounting Procedure (CAP) Accounting Research
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements. The State has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989, for its enterprise funds.

The State has two proprietary fund types: enterprise funds and internal service funds.
Enterprise funds record business-type activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods and
services. In addition, the State is required to report activities as enterprise funds in the context of the activity’s

principal revenue sources when any of the following criteria are met:

® The activity’s debt is secured solely by fees and charges of the activity;
® There is a legal requirement to recover costs; or
® The pricing policies of fees and charges are designed to recover costs.

The State reports the following major enterprise funds.

The Electric Power Fund accounts for the acquisition and resale of electric power to retail
end-use customers.

The Water Resources Fund accounts for charges to local water districts and the sale of excess power to
public utilities.

The Public Building Construction Fund accounts for rental charges from the lease of public assets.

The State Lottery Fund accounts for the sale of California State Lottery (Lottery) tickets and the Lottery’s
payments for education.

The Unemployment Programs Fund accounts for employer and worker contributions used for payments of
unemployment insurance and disability benefits.

Nonmajor enterprise funds account for additional operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises.

Additionally, the State reports internal service funds as a proprietary fund type with governmental activity.
Internal service funds account for goods or services provided to other agencies, departments, or governments
on a cost-reimbursement basis. The goods and services provided include: architectural services, construction
and improvements, printing and procurement services, goods produced by inmates of state prisons, data
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processing services, and administrative services related to water delivery. Internal service funds are included
in the governmental activities at the government-wide level.

Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by the State. The State acts as a trustee or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, or other funds. Fiduciary funds, including
fiduciary component units, are not included in the government-wide financial statements.

The State has the following four fiduciary fund types.

Private purpose trust funds account for all trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in pension
or investment trust funds, whereby principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other
governments. The following are the State’s largest private purpose trust funds.

The Scholarshare Program Trust Fund accounts for money received from participants to fund their
beneficiaries’ higher-education expenses at certain postsecondary educational institutions.

The Unclaimed Property Fund accounts for unclaimed money and properties held in trust by the State.
Unclaimed property is remitted to the General Fund where it can be used by the State until it is claimed.

Pension and other employee benefit trust funds of the primary government and fiduciary component units
account for transactions, assets, liabilities, and net assets available for plan benefits of the retirement
systems and for other employee benefit programs.

An investment trust fund accounts for the deposits, withdrawals, and earnings of the Local Agency
Investment Fund, an external investment pool for local governments and public agencies.

Agency funds account for assets held by the State, which acts as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments. The following are the State’s largest agency funds.

The Receipting and Disbursing Fund accounts for the collection and disbursement of revenues and
receipts on behalf of local governments. This fund also accounts for receipts from numerous state funds,
typically for the purpose of writing a single warrant when the warrant is funded by multiple funding
sources.

The Deposit Fund accounts for various deposits held in trust by state departments.
The Departmental Trust Fund accounts for various deposits held in trust by state departments.

Discretely presented component units consist of certain organizations that have enterprise activity. The
enterprise activity component units are the University of California, the State Compensation Insurance Fund,
the California Housing Finance Agency, the Public Employees’ Benefits Fund, and nonmajor component units.
In this report, all of the enterprise activity of the discretely presented component units is reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements and on separate pages following the fund financial
statements.
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C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
1. Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar
transactions are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

2. Fund Financial Statements

The measurement focus and basis of accounting for the fund financial statements vary with the type of fund.
Governmental fund types are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, operating statements present increases and decreases in net current assets; the
unreserved fund balance is a measure of available spendable resources.

The accounts of the governmental fund types are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded as they become measurable and available, and
expenditures are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. The State records revenue sources when
they are earned or when they are due, provided they are measurable and available within the ensuing
12 months. Principal tax revenues susceptible to accrual are recorded as taxpayers earn income (personal
income and corporation taxes), as sales are made (consumption and use taxes), and as the taxable event
occurs (miscellaneous taxes), net of estimated tax overpayments.

Proprietary fund types, the investment trust fund, private purpose trust funds, and pension and other
employee benefit trust funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus. Agency
funds are custodial in nature and do not measure the results of operations.

The accounts of the proprietary fund types, the investment trust fund, private purpose trust funds, pension and
other employee benefit trust funds, and agency funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, most transactions are recorded when they occur, regardless of when cash is received
or disbursed.

Lottery revenue and the related prize expenses are recognized when sales are made. Certain prizes are
payable in deferred installments. Such liabilities are recorded at the present value of amounts payable in

the future.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, all cash and pooled investments in the State Treasurer’s pooled
investment program are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Discretely presented component units are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting.

D. Inventories
Inventories of supplies are reported at cost and inventories held for resale are stated at the lower of average

cost or market. In the government-wide financial statements, inventories for both governmental and
business-type activities are expensed when they are consumed and unused inventories are reported as an
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asset on the Statement of Net Assets. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report inventories
as expenditures when purchased, and proprietary funds report inventories as expenditures when consumed.
The discretely presented component units have inventory policies similar to those of the primary government.

E. Deposits and Investments

The State reports investments at fair value, as prescribed by GAAP. Additional information on the State’s
investments can be found in Note 3, Deposits and Investments.

F. Net Investment in Direct Financing Leases

The State Public Works Board, an agency that accounts for its activities as an enterprise fund, has entered
into lease-purchase agreements with various other primary government agencies, the University of California,
and certain local agencies. The payments from these leases are used to satisfy the principal and interest
requirements of revenue bonds issued by the State Public Works Board to finance the cost of projects such as
acquisition and construction of facilities and equipment. Upon expiration of these leases, title to the facilities
and projects transfers to the primary government agency, the University of California, or the local agency. The
State Public Works Board records the net investment in direct financing leases at the net present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The California State University (CSU), an agency that accounts for its lease activities in the State University
Dormitory Building Maintenance and Equipment Fund, a nonmajor enterprise fund, has entered into 30-year
capital lease agreements with certain of its auxiliary organizations that are accounted for as a nonmajor
discretely presented component unit. These agreements lease existing and newly constructed facilities to the
auxiliary organizations. A portion of the proceeds from certain revenue bonds issued by CSU were used to
finance the construction of these facilities.

G. Deferred Charges

The deferred charges account in the enterprise funds primarily represents operating and maintenance costs
and unrecovered capital costs that will be recognized in the Water Resources Fund as expenses over the
remaining life of long-term state water supply contracts. These costs are billable in future years. In addition,
the account includes unbilled interest earnings on unrecovered capital costs that are recorded as deferred
charges. These charges are recognized when billed in future years under the terms of water supply contracts.
The deferred charges for the Public Buildings Construction Fund include bond counsel fees, trustee fees,
rating agency fees, underwriting costs, insurance costs, and miscellaneous expenses. Bond issuance costs
are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the bonds. Amortization of bond issue costs
during the facility construction period is capitalized and included in the construction costs. Deferred charges
are also included in the State Lottery Fund and nonmajor enterprise funds. Bond issuance costs recorded as
expenditures in certain capital projects and special revenue funds are reclassified as deferred charges in the
governmental activities column of the Statement of Net Assets and are amortized over the life of the bonds.

H. Capital Assets
Capital assets are categorized into land, state highway infrastructure, collections, buildings and other
depreciable property, and construction in progress. The buildings and other depreciable property account

includes buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, personal property, intangible assets, certain
infrastructure assets, certain books, and other capitalized and depreciable property. The value of the capital
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assets, including the related accumulated depreciation, is reported in the applicable governmental,
business-type, or component unit activities columns in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

The primary government has a large collection of historical and contemporary treasures that have important
documentary and artistic value. These assets are not capitalized or depreciated because they are cultural
resources and cannot reasonably be valued and/or the assets have inexhaustible useful lives. These treasures
and works of art include furnishings, portraits and other paintings, books, statues, photographs, and
miscellaneous artifacts. These collections meet the conditions for exemption from capitalization because the
collections are: held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, rather than
financial gain; protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved; and are subject to an organizational
policy that requires the proceeds from sales of collection items to be used to acquire other items for
collections.

In general, capital assets of the primary government are defined as assets that have a normal useful life of at
least one year and a unit acquisition cost of at least $5,000. These assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost, including all costs related to the acquisition. Donated capital assets are recorded at
the fair market value on the date the gift was received. Major capital asset outlays are capitalized as projects
are constructed.

Buildings and other depreciable property are depreciated using the straight-line method with no salvage value
for governmental activities. Generally, buildings and other improvements are depreciated over 40 years and
equipment is depreciated over five years. Depreciable assets of business-type activities are depreciated using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful or service lives, ranging from three to 100 years.

California has elected to use the modified approach for capitalizing the infrastructure assets of the state
highway system. The state highway system consists of 49,477 lane-miles and 12,266 bridges that are
maintained by the California Department of Transportation. By using the modified approach, the infrastructure
assets of the state highway system are not depreciated and all expenditures made for those assets, except for
additions and improvements, are expensed in the period incurred. All additions and improvements made after
June 30, 2001, are capitalized. All infrastructure assets that are related to projects completed prior to
July 1, 2001, are recorded at the historical costs contained in annual reports of the American Association of
State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and the Federal Highway Administration.

The capital assets of the discretely presented component units are reported at cost at the date of acquisition or
at fair market value at the date of donation, in the case of gifts. They are depreciated over their estimated
useful service lives.

. Long-term Obligations

Long-term obligations consist of certain unmatured general obligation bonds, certain unmatured revenue
bonds, capital lease obligations, certificates of participation, commercial paper, the net pension obligation of
the pension and other employee benefit trust funds, the net other postemployment benefits obligation, the
liability for employees’ compensated absences and workers’ compensation claims, pollution remediation
obligations, amounts owed for lawsuits, reimbursement for costs mandated by the State, the outstanding
Proposition 98 funding guarantee owed to schools, the liability for Lottery prizes and annuities, and the primary
government’s share of the University of California pension liability that is due in more than one year. In the
government-wide financial statements, current and noncurrent obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, and component units columns of the Statement of
Net Assets.
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Pollution remediation obligations are recorded by the State when one or more of the GASB Statement No. 49
obligating events have occurred and when a reasonable estimate of the remediation cost is available. These
liabilities are measured using actual contract costs, where no change in cost is expected, or the expected cash
flow technique. The remediation obligation estimates that appear in this report are subject to change over time.
Cost may vary due to price fluctuations, changes in technology, changes in potential responsible parties,
results of environmental studies, changes to statutes or regulations and other factors that could result in
revisions to these estimates. Prospective recoveries from responsible parties may reduce the State’s
obligation.

Bond premiums, discounts, and loss on refundings for business-type activities and component units are
generally deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. In these instances, bonds payable are reported
net of the applicable premium, discount, or loss. Bond premiums and discounts for governmental activities are
reported as other financing sources (uses) in the fund financial statements. However, in the government-wide
financial statements, the bonds payable for governmental activities is reported net of the applicable
unamortized premium, discount and loss on refunding.

With approval in advance from the Legislature, certain authorities and state agencies may issue revenue
bonds. Principal and interest on revenue bonds are payable from the pledged revenues of the respective
funds, building authorities, and agencies. The General Fund has no legal liability for payment of principal and
interest on revenue bonds. With the exception of certain special revenue funds (Transportation and the Golden
State Tobacco Securitization Corporation) and the building authorities’ capital projects funds, the liability for
revenue bonds is recorded in the respective fund.

J. Compensated Absences

The government-wide financial statements report both the current and the noncurrent liabilities for
compensated absences, which are vested unpaid vacation, annual leave, and other paid leave programs.
However, unused sick-leave balances are not included in the compensated absences because they do not
vest to employees. In the fund financial statements for governmental funds, only the compensated absences
for employees that have left state service and have unused reimbursable leave at year-end would be included.
The amounts of vested unpaid vacation and annual leave accumulated by state employees are accrued in
proprietary funds when incurred. In the discretely presented component units, the compensated absences are
accounted for in the same manner as in the proprietary funds of the primary government.

K. Net Assets and Fund Balance

The difference between fund assets and liabilities is called “net assets” on the government-wide financial
statements, the proprietary and fiduciary fund statements, and the component unit statements; it is called “fund
balance” on the governmental fund statements. The government-wide financial statements have the following
categories of net assets.

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt, represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets result from transactions with purpose restrictions and are designated as either
nonexpendable or expendable. Nonexpendable restricted net assets are subject to externally imposed
restrictions that must be retained in perpetuity. Expendable restricted net assets are subject to externally
imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the State. As of June 30, 2009, the government-wide
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financial statements show restricted net assets for the primary government of $12.2 billion, of which
$1.8 billion is due to enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets are neither restricted nor invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds have categories of net assets similar to those in the
government-wide statements. Governmental funds have two fund balance sections: reserved and unreserved.
Part or all of the total fund balance may be reserved as a result of law or generally accepted accounting
principles. Reserves represent those portions of the fund balances that are segregated for specific uses. The
reserves of the fund balance for governmental funds are as follows.

Reserved for encumbrances represents goods and services that are ordered, but not received, by the end of
the fiscal year.

Reserved for interfund receivables represents the noncurrent portion of advances to other funds that do not
represent expendable available financial resources.

Reserved for loans receivable represents the noncurrent portion of loans receivable that does not represent
expendable available financial resources.

Reserved for continuing appropriations represents the unencumbered balance of all appropriations for which
the period of availability extends beyond the period covered in the report. These appropriations are legally
segregated for a specific future use.

Reserved for debt service represents the amount legally reserved for the payment of bonded indebtedness
that is not available for other purposes until the bonded indebtedness is liquidated.

The unreserved amounts represent the net of total fund balance, less reserves.

Fiduciary fund net assets are amounts held in trust for benefits and other purposes.

L. Restatement of Beginning Fund Balances and Net Assets

1. Fund Financial Statements

The beginning fund balance of the governmental funds increased by $14 million. The net increase is
composed of a $1 million decrease in the Transportation Fund, a major governmental fund, and a
$15 million increase in three nonmajor governmental funds. The decrease in the Transportation Fund and
$1 million of the increase in nonmajor governmental funds was the result of the reclassification of a small
fund to the Transportation Fund. The remaining net $14 million increase to nonmajor governmental funds
comprises a $16 million increase as a result of an error in prior year federal revenue and a $2 million decrease
to correct trial court accounting system errors.

The beginning net assets of the enterprise funds decreased by $443 million as a result of removing the

carrying value of certain toll bridges from other nonmajor enterprise funds to governmental activities where
they will be reported as state highway infrastructure.
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The beginning net assets of the pension and other employee benefit trust funds decreased by
$146 thousand as a result of the reclassification of the Replacement Benefit Custodial Fund to an agency
fund.

The beginning net assets of the discretely presented component units — enterprise activity decreased by
$33 million for pollution remediation obligations added when the University of California implemented GASB
Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations.

2. Government-wide Financial Statements

The beginning net assets of the governmental activities decreased by $1.8 billion. In addition to the amounts
described in the previous section for governmental funds, the decrease is primarily the result of a $1.2 billion
decrease related to various capital asset adjustments. The $1.2 billion decrease to capital assets comprises a
$1.9 billion decrease to remove capitalized expenditures for state highway infrastructure and related assets
that are actually preservation costs under the modified approach for capitalizing infrastructure assets; a
$533 million increase to include state highway infrastructure previously reported in an enterprise fund; a
$368 million increase to correct errors in prior year accumulated depreciation; a $140 million decrease to
remove the assets of the California State University (CSU), Channel Island Site Authority which was
reclassified from a blended component unit to a discretely presented component unit; and a $46 million
decrease for other adjustments to assets for various CSU campuses. In addition, beginning net assets
decreased by $626 million for pollution remediation obligations added as a result of implementing GASB
Statement No. 49.

The beginning net assets of the component units were restated as described in the previous section for
discretely presented component units - enterprise activity.

M. Guaranty Deposits

The State is custodian of guaranty deposits held to protect consumers, to secure the State’s deposits in
financial institutions, and to ensure payment of taxes and fulfilment of obligations to the State. Guaranty
deposits of securities and other properties are not shown on the financial statements.

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

A. Budgeting and Budgetary Control

The State’s annual budget is prepared primarily on a modified accrual basis for governmental funds. The
Governor recommends a budget for approval by the Legislature each year. This recommended budget
includes estimated revenues; however, revenues are not included in the annual budget bill adopted by the
Legislature. Under state law, the State cannot adopt a spending plan that exceeds estimated revenues.

Under the State Constitution, money may be drawn from the treasury only through a legal appropriation. The
appropriations contained in the Budget Act, as approved by the Legislature and signed by the Governor, are
the primary sources of annual expenditure authorizations and establish the legal level of control for the annual
operating budget. The budget can be amended throughout the year by special legislative action, budget
revisions by the Department of Finance, or executive orders of the Governor. Amendments to the original
budget for the year ended June 30, 2009, were legally made, and they had the effect of decreased spending
for the General Fund and increased spending for the Transportation Fund.
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Appropriations are generally available for expenditure or encumbrance either in the year appropriated or for a
period of three years if the legislation does not specify a period of availability. At the end of the availability
period, the encumbering authority for the unencumbered balance lapses. Some appropriations continue
indefinitely, while others are available until fully spent. Generally, encumbrances must be liquidated within
two years from the end of the period in which the appropriation is available. If the encumbrances are not
liquidated within this additional two-year period, the spending authority for these encumbrances lapses.

B. Legal Compliance

State agencies are responsible for exercising basic budgetary control and ensuring that appropriations are not
overspent. The State Controller’'s Office is responsible for overall appropriation control and does not allow
expenditures in excess of authorized appropriations.

Financial activities are mainly controlled at the appropriation level but can vary, depending on the presentation
and wording contained in the Budget Act. The Budget Act appropriations are identified by department,
reference item, and fund. The annual appropriated budget may establish detailed allocations to specific
programs, projects, or sources of reimbursement within an appropriation. The Department of Finance can
authorize adjustments between the detail allocations but cannot increase the amount of the overall
appropriation. While the financial activities are controlled at various levels, the legal level of budgetary
control—the extent to which management may amend the budget without seeking approval of the governing
body—has been established in the Budget Act for the annual operating budget.

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The State Treasurer administers a single pooled investment program comprising both an internal investment
pool and an external investment pool (the Local Agency Investment Fund). A single portfolio of investments
exists, with all participants having an undivided interest in the portfolio. Both pools are administered in the
same manner, as described below.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, certain risk disclosures are included in this note to
the extent that the risks exist at the date of the statement of net assets. Disclosure of the following risks is
included:

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the value of fixed-income securities will decline because of changing
interest rates. The prices of fixed-income securities with longer time to maturity tend to be more sensitive to

changes in interest rates than those with shorter durations.

Credit Risk is the risk that a debt issuer will fail to pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or that
negative perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause security prices to decline.

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event a financial institution or counterparty fails, the investor will
not be able to recover the value of deposits, investments, or collateral.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investor’s holdings in a
single issuer.

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit.
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A. Primary Government

The State’s pooled investment program and certain funds of the primary government are allowed by state
statutes, bond resolutions, and investment policy resolutions to invest in United States government securities,
federal agency securities, negotiable certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper,
corporate bonds, bank notes, other debt securities, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements,
and other investments.

Certain discretely presented component units participate in the State Treasurer's Office pooled investment
program. As of June 30, 2009, the discretely presented component units accounted for approximately 4.9% of
the State Treasurer's pooled investment portfolio. This program enables the State Treasurer's Office to
combine available cash from all funds and to invest cash that exceeds current needs.

Both deposits and investments are included in the State’s investment program. For certain banks, the State
Treasurer’s Office maintains cash deposits that cover uncleared checks deposited in the State’s accounts and
that earn income which compensates the banks for their services.

Demand and time deposits held by financial institutions as of June 30, 2009, totaling approximately
$7.0 billion, were insured by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the State Treasurer’s Office
or an agent of the State Treasurer’s Office in the State’s name. The California Government Code requires that
collateral pledged for demand and time deposits be deposited with the State Treasurer. Additionally,
$17.5 billion was on deposit with financial institutions in Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (NOW) accounts.
These deposits were insured by federal depository insurance.

As of June 30, 2009, the State Treasurer's Office had on deposit with a fiscal agent amounts totaling
$31 million related to principal and interest payments to bondholders. Additionally, $140 million was on deposit
in a NOW account with a custodial agent to provide sufficient earnings to cover fees for custodial services.
These deposits were also insured by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by an agent of the State
Treasurer’s Office in the State’s name.

The State Treasurer’s Office reports its investments at fair value. The fair value of securities in the State
Treasurer’'s pooled investment program generally is based on quoted market prices. The State Treasurer’s
Office performs a quarterly fair market valuation of the pooled investment program portfolio. In addition, the
State Treasurer’s Office performs a monthly fair market valuation of all securities held against carrying cost.
These valuations are posted to the State Treasurers Office Web site at www.treasurer.ca.gov. As of
June 30, 2009, the weighted average maturity of the securities in the pooled investment program administered
by the State Treasurer's Office was approximately 214 days. Weighted average maturity is the average
number of days, given a dollar-weighted value of individual investments, that the securities in the portfolio
have remaining from evaluation date to stated maturity.

The Pooled Money Investment Board provides oversight of the State Treasurer’'s pooled investment program.
The purpose of the board is to design an effective cash management and investment program, using all
monies flowing through the State Treasurer’s Office bank accounts and keeping all available funds invested in
a manner consistent with the goals of safety, liquidity, and yield. The Pooled Money Investment Board is
comprised of the State Treasurer as chair, the State Controller, and the Director of Finance. This board
designates the amounts of money available for investment. The State Treasurer is charged with making the
actual investment transactions for this program. This investment program is not registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission as an investment company.
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The value of the deposits in the State Treasurer’s pooled investment program, including the Local Agency
Investment Fund, is equal to the dollars deposited in the program. The fair value of the position in the program
may be greater or less than the value of the deposits, with the difference representing the unrealized gain or
loss. As of June 30, 2009, this difference was immaterial to the valuation of the program. The pool is run with
“dollar-in, dollar-out” participation. There are no share-value adjustments to reflect changes in fair value.

Certain funds have elected to participate in the pooled investment program even though they have the
authority to make their own investments. Others may be required by legislation to participate in the program;
as a result, the deposits of these funds or accounts may be considered involuntary. However, these funds or
accounts are part of the State’s reporting entity. The remaining participation in the pool, the Local Agency
Investment Fund, is voluntary.

Certain funds that have deposits in the State Treasurer's pooled investment program do not receive the
interest earnings on their deposits. Instead, by law, the earnings are to be assigned to the State’s General
Fund. Most of the $112 million in interest revenue received by the General Fund from the pooled investment
program in the 2008-09 fiscal year was earned on balances in these funds.

The State Treasurer’'s pooled investment program values participants’ shares on an amortized cost basis.
Specifically, the program distributes income to participants quarterly, based on their relative participation
during the quarter. This participation is calculated based on (1) realized investment gains and losses
calculated on an amortized cost basis, (2) interest income based on stated rates (both paid and accrued),
(8) amortization of discounts and premiums on a straight-line basis, and (4) investment and administrative
expenses. This amortized cost method differs from the fair value method used to value investments in these
financial statements; the amortized cost method is not designed to distribute to participants all unrealized
gains and losses in the fair value of the pool’s investments. Because the total difference between the fair value
of the investments in the pool and the value distributed to pool participants using the amortized cost method
described above is not material, no adjustment was made to the financial statements.

The State Treasurer’s Office also reports participant fair value as a ratio of amortized cost on a quarterly basis.
The State Treasurer’s Office has not provided or obtained a legally binding guarantee to support the principal
invested in the investment program.

As of June 30, 2009, structured notes and asset-backed securities comprised approximately 14.7% of the
pooled investments. A significant portion of the structured notes consisted of federal agency floating-rate
debentures. For the federal agency and corporate floating-rate securities held in the portfolio during the fiscal
year, the interest received by the State Treasurer’s pooled investment program rose or fell as the underlying
index rate rose or fell. The portion representing the asset-backed securities consists of mortgage backed
securities, Small Business Administration (SBA) pools, and asset-backed commercial paper. The mortgage-
backed securities are called real estate mortgage investment conduits (REMICs), and are securities backed by
pools of mortgages. The REMICs in the State’s portfolio have a fixed principal payment schedule. A lesser
portion of the asset-backed securities consisted of floating-rate SBA notes. For floating-rate SBA notes held in
the portfolio during the fiscal year, the interest received by the State Treasurer’s pooled investment program
rose or fell as the underlying index rate rose or fell. The structure of the floating-rate notes in the State
Treasurer’s pooled investment program portfolio provided a hedge against the risk of increasing interest rates.
A portion of the asset-backed portfolio holdings was short-term, asset-backed commercial paper (ABCP),
which represented 1.5% of pooled investments.

Enterprise funds and special revenue funds also make separate investments, which are presented at fair
value.
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Table 1 identifies the investment types that are authorized by the California Government Code

Treasurer’s Office investment policy for the pooled investment program.

Table 1

and the State

Authorized Investments

Authorized Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Securities
Federal Agency Securities
Certificates of Deposit
Bankers Acceptances
Commercial Paper

Corporate Bonds/Notes
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Maximum Maximum Percentage Maximum Investment Credit
Maturity' of Portfolio in One Issuer Rating
5 years N/A N/A N/A
5 years N/A N/A N/A
5 years N/A N/A N/A
180 days N/A N/A N/A
180 days 30% 10% of issuer’s outstanding A-2/P-2/F-22
Commercial Paper
5 years N/A N/A A-/A3/A-3
1 year N/A N/A N/A
1 year 10%" N/A N/A

T Limitations are pursuant to the State Treasurer's Office Investment Policy for the Pooled Money Investment Account. The
Government Code does not establish limits for investments of surplus monies in this investment type, except for commercial paper.

2 The State Treasurer’s Office Investment Policy for the Pooled Money Investment Account is more restrictive than the Government

Code, which allows investments rated A-3/P-3/F-3.

8 The Government Code requires that a security fall within the top three ratings of a nationally recognized rating service.
N/A Neither the Government Code nor the State Treasure’s Office Investment Policy for the Pooled Money Investment Account sets
limits for the investment of surplus monies in this investment type.
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1. Interest Rate Risk

Table 2 presents the interest rate risk of the primary government’s investments.

Table 2

Schedule of Investments — Primary Government — Interest Rate Risk
June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Weighted
Average
Interest Fair Value Maturity
Rates' Maturity at Year End (in years)
Pooled investments
U.S. Treasury bills and notes ...........cccccceeeieenneennen. 0.16 -2.17 2 days -2.96 years $ 13,445,606 0.73
U.S. agency bonds and discount notes ................... 0.14 -5.04 6 days - 1.84 years 8,545,832 0.44
Supranational debentures (IBRD) .........cccccoevvienen. 1.32 2.82 years 301,325 2.82
Small Business Administration loans ...................... 0.55 -1.38 0.25 year 538,418 0.25 2
Mortgage-backed securities 3 .............cccooveeennn.n. 3.92 -14.25 16 days - 6.13 years 1,029,718 2.29
Certificates of deposit ........cccceeiiiiiiiiiiiccice, 0.24 -1.15 1 day - 92 days 4,575,024 0.14
Commercial PAPET .......ccceerviiiiieiieiee e 0.27 -0.75 1 day - 92 days 2,113,698 0.15
Corporate bonds and Notes ...........cccecvevveecieniennne, 0.88 -5.22 42 days - 1.21 years 303,393 0.71
Total pooled INVESTMENTS ......ccccciiiirinr s sa s e san e e s mnn s 30,853,014 *
Other primary government investments
U.S. Treasuries and gENCIES .......c.ccouiiiieiiieiie ittt sttt ettt et aeesan e e 2,528,834 3.29
COMMEICIAI PAPET ......oeveveeeeeecee e seeeeees e eeeae e es e es e s saetes s e s esas s s s s et en st es s st anessesensesenessesnsenas 144,298 N/A S
Guaranteed iNVeStMENt CONTIACES ...........eeiiiiiiiiiieee e e e e e e e 254,338 13.70
Corporate D SECUIIES .....uviiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e e e e e e e e e eneeeeas 619,803 1.88
(@ (=Y USRI 592,502 2.34
Total other primary government investments 4,139,775
Funds outside primary government included in pooled investments
Less: iNvesStMENt truSt fUNAS .......ooiiiiiie e e e 25,251,903
Less: other trust and agency fUNAS ..........cooiiiiiii i 2,826,804
Less: discretely presented COMPONENT UNILS ......ccveiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiiie e 2,516,212
Total primary government investments ... $ 4,397,870

1 These numbers represent high and low interest rates for each investment type.

2 |n calculating SBA holdings’ weighted average maturity, the State Treasurer’s Office assumes stated maturity is the quarterly

reset date.

3 These securities are issued by U.S. government agencies such as the Government National Mortgage Association.

4 Total pooled investments does not include certain assets of the State’s pooled investment program. The other assets include

$5.6 billion of time deposits and $14.4 billion of internal loans to State funds which are reported as cash in the respective funds.

5 These commercial paper holdings of the Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation mature in less than one year.

6 Total other primary government investments include approximately $17 million of cash equivalents that are included in cash

and pooled investments.
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Table 3 identifies the debt securities that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree
than already indicated in the information provided previously).

Table 3

Schedule of Highly Sensitive Investments in Debt Securities — Primary Government — Interest Rate Risk
June 30, 2009

(amounts in thousands)

% of Total
Fair Value Pooled
Pooled investments at Year End Investments
Mortgage-backed
Federal National Mortgage Association Collateralized Mortgage Obligations ...............c.......... $ 1,029,578 3.337 %
Government National Mortgage Association POOIS ............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiccc e 140 0.000

These mortgage-backed securities entitle the purchaser to receive a share of the cash flows, such as principal and interest
payments, from a pool of mortgages. Mortgage securities are sensitive to interest rate changes because principal prepayments
either increase (in a low interest rate environment) or decrease (in a high interest rate environment). A change, up or down, in
the payment rate will result in a change in the security yield.

78



Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Credit Risk

Table 4 presents the credit risk of the primary government’s debt securities.

Table 4

Schedule of Investments in Debt Securities — Primary Government — Credit Risk

June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Credit Rating as of Year End

Short-term Long-term Fair Value

Pooled investments'

A-1+/P-1/F-1+ AAA/Aaa/AAA $ 12,560,872
A-1/P-1/F-1 AA/Aa/AA 2,969,488
A-2/P-2/F-2 A/A/A 308,912

Not rated 1,029,578
Not applicable ..........ccocciiiiiiiiiiieee e 13,984,164
Total pooled investments .........ccccviiemrniicnniniiannnns $ 30,853,014

Other primary government investments

A-1+/P-1/F-1+ AAA/Aaa/AAA $ 1,682,675
A-1/P-1/F-1 AA/Aa/AA 267,597
A-2/P-2/F-2 A/A/A 606,216
A-3/P-3/F-3 BBB/Baa/BBB 32,360
B/NP/B BB/Ba/BB 148
B/NP/B B/B/B 157
NOt rated .....cooeeeiiiee s 306,317

Not applicable 1,244,305

Total other primary government investments .... $ 4,139,775

1
The State Treasurer’s Office uses Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch ratings services. Securities are classified by the lowest

rating of the three agencies.

2 Total pooled investments does not include certain assets of the State’s pooled investment program. The other assets include time
deposits of $5.6 billion, for which credit risk is mitigated by collateral that the State holds for them—as discussed earlier in this
note—and loans to State funds of $14.4 billion, for which external credit risk is not applicable because they are internal loans.
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3. Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the State Treasurer's Office contains no limitations on the amount that can be
invested in any one issuer beyond those limitations stipulated in the California Government Code. Table 5
identifies debt securities in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities) that represent 5% or more of
the State Treasurer’s investments, or of the separate investments of other primary government funds.

Table 5

Schedule of Investments — Primary Government — Concentration of Credit Risk
June 30, 2009
(amounts in thousands)

POOLED INVESTMENTS

% of Total
Reported Pooled
Issuer Investment Type Amount Investments
Federal Home Loan Bank U.S. agency securities $ 8,345,426 27.05 %
OTHER PRIMARY GOVERNMENT INVESTMENTS
% of Total
Reported Agency
Issuer Investment Type Amount Investments
Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation U.S. agency securities $ 171,984 36.74 %
Federal National Mortgage Association U.S. agency securities 151,805 32.43
General Electric Company Commercial paper 93,668 20.01
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company Commercial paper 50,630 10.82
Department of Water Resources
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation U.S. agency securities $ 51,780 56.16 %
Federal National Mortgage Association U.S. agency securities 23,697 25.70

4. Custodial Credit Risk

The State of California has a deposit policy for custodial credit risk that requires deposits held by financial
institutions to be insured by federal depository insurance or secured by collateral. As of June 30, 2009,
$6 million in deposits of the Electric Power Fund were uninsured and uncollateralized.
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B. Fiduciary Funds

The fiduciary funds include pension and other employee benefit trust funds of the following fiduciary funds and
component units: the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), the California State
Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), the fund for the California Scholarshare program, and various other
funds. CalPERS and CalSTRS account for 97% of these separately invested funds.

CalPERS and CalSTRS exercise their authority under the State Constitution and invest in stocks, bonds,
mortgages, real estate, and other investments.

CalPERS reports investments in securities at fair value, generally based on published market prices and
quotations from pricing vendors. Many factors are considered in arriving at fair value. Real estate investments,
held either directly, in separate accounts, or as a limited partnership in a commingled fund, are subject to
independent third-party appraisals. Short-term investments are reported at market value, when available, or,
when market value is not available, at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market value. For
investments where no readily ascertainable market value exists, management, in consultation with its
investment advisors, determines the fair values for the individual investments.

Under the State Constitution and statutory provisions governing CalPERS’ investment authority, CalPERS,
through its outside investment managers, holds investments in futures and options and enters into forward
foreign currency exchange contracts. CalPERS held for investment purposes futures and options with a fair
value of approximately negative $119 million as of June 30, 2009. Gains and losses on futures and options are
determined based upon quoted market values and recorded in the statement of changes in fiduciary
net assets.

Due to the level of risk associated with certain derivative investment securities, it is reasonably possible that
investment securities values will change in the near term; such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements.

CalPERS uses forward foreign currency exchange contracts primarily to hedge against changes in exchange
rates related to foreign securities. As of June 30, 2009, CalPERS had an approximately negative $120 million
net exposure to loss from forward foreign currency exchange transactions related to the approximately
$46.0 billion international debt and equity portfolios. CalPERS could be exposed to risk if the counterparties to
the contracts are unable to meet the terms of the contracts. CalPERS investment managers seek to control
this risk through counterparty credit evaluations and approvals, counterparty credit limits, and exposure
monitoring procedures. CalPERS anticipates that the counterparties will be able to satisfy their obligations
under the contracts.

CalSTRS also reports investments at fair value, generally based on published market prices and quotations
from pricing vendors for securities. Real estate equity investment fair values are based on either recent
estimates provided by CalSTRS’ contract real estate advisors or by independent appraisers. Short-term
investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Fair value for commingled
funds (other than those funds traded on a national or international exchange) is based on information provided
by the applicable fund managers. Alternative investments represent interests in private equity partnerships that
CalSTRS enters into under a limited partnership agreement. For alternative investments and other
investments for which no readily ascertainable market value exists, CalSTRS management, in consultation
with its investment advisors, has determined the fair value for the individual investments. Purchases and sales
are recorded on the trade date.
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The State Constitution, state statutes, and board policies permit CalPERS and CalSTRS to lend their
securities to broker-dealers and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the
same securities in the future. Third-party securities lending agents are under contract to lend domestic and
international equity and debt securities. For both CalPERS and CalSTRS, collateral, in the form of cash or
other securities, is required at 102% and 105% of the fair value of domestic and international securities
loaned, respectively. CalPERS’ management believes that CalPERS has minimized its credit risk exposure by
requiring the borrowers to provide collateral greater than 100% of the market value of the securities loaned.
The securities loaned are priced daily. Securities on loan can be recalled on demand by